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A-1
(GEORGIA RACE TO THE Top
INNOVATION FUND
APPLICATION FACE SHEET

SECTION 1: APPLICANT AGENCY
Applicant Agency (Legal Name): KIPP Metro Atlanta Collaborative

Legal Mailing Address: 98 Anderson Ave, NW
City: Atlanta County: Fulton State: GA Zip: 30314
Federal Employer I.D. #: 11-3723114 DUNS #: 035506581

Congressional District #: 5

Executive Officer Name: David Jernigan Title:Executive Director

Street Address: 98 Anderson Ave. NW City: Atlanta State: GA Zip: 30314
Telephone: 404.924.6310 FAX: 404.924. 6315 Email: djemigan@kippmetroatlanta.org

SECTION 2: PARTNERSHIP LEAD CONTACT
Contact Name: Elizabeth Sharp Broderick Title: Director of Development

Street Address: 98 Anderson Ave, NW
City: Atlanta State: GA Zip: 30314
Telephone: 404 924 6310 FAX: 404 924 6315 Email: ebroderick{@kippmetroatlanta.org

SECTION 3: FISCAL CONTACT
Contact Name: Troy Wright Title: Director of Finance

Street Address: 98 Anderson Ave. NW
City: Atlanta State: GA  Zip: 30314

Telephone: 404 924 6310 FAX: 404 924 6315 Email: twright@kippmetroatlanta.org

SECTION 4: GRANT AMOUNT REQUESTED: $1,050,000

SECTION 5: APPLICANT AGENCY FISCAL INFORMATION
I.  Month of Fiscal Year End: June

2. Attach to the application, the applicant agency’s financial audit.

3. Is applicant agency delinquent on any federal debt? Ngm YES[] If yes, attach a detailed
explanation.

4. Did applicant agency receive 80 percent or more of its annual gross revenue in federal awards in its
preceding fiscal year; and $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenue from federal awards and in so

doing is required to comply with “Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act”? NO&
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YES[] If yes, attach names and total compensation of the five most highly compensated officers of

the grantee.

SECTION 6: PARTICIPANT DATA:

Approximate number of students served: 1,200
Population of focus (i.e. age, gender, race): K-12, 75% poverty, 95% African American

SECTION 7: SERVICE DELIVERY AREA
Primary county or counties to be served: Fulton
List other counties to be served (if any):

Congressional District(s) to be served: 5

SECTION 8: PROGRAM ACTIVITIES

It is the mission of KIPP Metro Atlanta to prepare students for top quality high schools, colleges,
and the competitive world beyond. To achieve this mission, we partner with local school districts
to increase the number of college graduates and to challenge the mindset of what is possible in
public education. KIPP Metro Atlanta currently operates four public, charter middle schools and
KIPP Through College (our alumni support and mentorship program), serving 1,300 students. In
July, we will open our first high school, KIPP Atlanta Collegiate.

SECTION 9: AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES

I, the undersigned, an authorized representative of the applicant, have read, understand, and agree to all
relative conditions specified in the Race to the Top Innovation Fund Request for Proposals and having
read all attachments thereto do submit this application on behalf of the applicant agency. If awarded a
grant to implement the provision herein, I do certify that all applicable federal and state laws, rules, and
regulations thereto will be followed.

APPLICANT
%ﬁ) ‘  Exeuboe Dtede 420/
@iﬁnature and Ti% Date
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Proposal Narrative

Executive Summary

We respectfully request that the Georgia Race to the Top Innovation Fund consider a grant of
$1,050,000 to help create the KIPP Teacher Fellows Program at KIPP Metro Atlanta Collaborative {"KIPP
Metro Atlanta” or “KIPP MAC”). Working in close collaboration with Georgia State University and
Mercer University, the program will help recruit and retain highly effective teachers to work at KIPP

Metro Atlanta and traditional public schools throughout the region.

Muttiple studies on teacher effectiveness have shown that many new teachers struggle to be effective in
their first few years of teaching. In fact, some studies have shown that new teachers can actually have a
negative impact on student achievement during their first two years of teaching. Although a novice
teacher is a necessary starting point for any potential high quality veteran teacher, students in high
poverty schools are almost twice as likely to be assigned a novice or inexperienced teacher as those on
the lowest poverty schools.! Given that new teachers entering the profession are often serving students
with the highest needs, it is imperative that we invest in their preparation if we are to ensure that
teachers in urban settings will develop the knowledge, skilis, and dispositions to be effective teachers of

high poverty students who are counting on educational attainment to shape their life prospects.

The KIPP Teacher Fellows Program will address this problem by making a significant investment in new,
promising teachers who are committed to teaching in high-poverty urban schools. The program will
provide an intense year-long residency for new high-potential teachers who are mission-aligned and
show great promise to be ready for a full-time teaching position within a year. KIPP Teacher Fellows
will be full-time school-based employees, compensated as first-year teachers, with significant
responsibilities, including:

¢ Assisting with planning/implementing lessons through co-teaching and/or small group

instruction

1 . , . . .
Teaching theguality: How Poor and Mincrity Students are Shortchanged on Teacher Quality: A Report and
Recommendation by the Education Trust” (p. 4), by H. G. Peske, and K. Haycock, 2006, Washington, DC: The Education Trust



* Providing support with student discipline and parent communication

*  Assisting with tutoring students during and/or after school

s Chaperoning/planning locat and out of state trips

* Assisting with bus, lunch, and detention duties

¢ Teaching non-core classes as needed (life skills, enrichment, study skills, electives, etc.)
* Planning, organizing, and/or sponsoring extracurricutar activities

e Serving as a substitute in the absence of a teacher

While getting hands-on experience, KIPP Teacher Fellows will receive ongoing training through a series
of workshops delivered by master teachers and §éaders, coaching by an experienced KIPP master
teacher, and growing responsibilities through a “gradual release” approach, In addition to providing a
recruitment source for teaching positions in Metro Atianta, KIPP Teacher Fellows will provide significant
support to KIPP teachers and students requiring additional one-on-one support, thus strengthening our
instructional program’s efficacy and sustainability. Upon successfully completing the program, the KIPP
Teacher Fellows program wiil facilitate fellows securing a teaching position in Metro Atlanta schools. We
are confident that the training provided by the KIPP Teacher Fellows program will greatly increase the
efficacy of new teachers pursuing teaching positions in the Atlanta area, while also strengthening the

collaboration among KIPP Metro Atlanta, local teacher education programs, and the local districts.

We will use the 2011-2012 school year as planning year, with the goal of implementing the full program
for the 2012-13 school year. A program director will be hired by January 2012 to oversee the planning,
recruiting, and implementation of the program. We anticipate having six teacher fellows in the first year
of the program and growing the program incrementally in the years that follow. Should funding allow,

we would gladly grow the program to twenty teachers by our third year of operation,

KIPP Teacher Fellows are expected to have a wide-ranging impact on high-needs students as Fellows and
then as full-time teachers of record at KIPP or other public schools. During their fellowship year,
program participants wiil directly or indirectly serve the entire student body at their KIPP placement
school. Their participation in school community activities, along with their instructional responsibilities,
will provide opportunities for them to interact with students on every grade level and in every subject
area. Upon successfully completing the program and becoming full-time teachers, their impact will be

felt throughout the Atlanta Metro region as they effectively navigate their teacher careers in high-



needs, urban schools. It is our expectation that they will have a direct impact on the students they

teach, the faculty with which they serve, and overall success of their schools throughout their careers.

We are confident that the successful implementation of the KIPP Teacher Fellows program will serve the
dual purpose of creating a highly effective teacher induction program while increasing the pipeline of
highly-effective teachers in underserved communities. Support from the Innovation Fund will heip
ensure that we have the resources necessary to successfully implement the program and ensure that

more students will have the opportunity to “climb the mountain to college.”
Section 1: Partnership Overview

The KIPP Teacher Fellows Program will be a joint partnership between KIPP Metro Atlanta, Mercer
University's Tift College of Education, and Georgia State University’s Teacher Education Program. The
primary administration of the program will be executed by KIPP Metro Atlanta. The partnerships with
Mercer and Georgia State will help provide a pipeline of qualified candidates for the program as well as

expertise in teacher preparation and induction.

It is the mission of KIPP Metro Atlanta to prepare students for top quality high schools, colleges, and the
competitive world beyond. To achieve this mission, we partner with local school districts to increase the
number of college graduates and to challenge the mindset of what is possible in public education. KIPP
Metro Atlanta currently operates four public, charter middle schoois and KIPP Through Coliege {our
alumni support and mentorship program), serving 1,300 students. In July, we wiil open our first high

school, KIPP Atlanta Collegiate.

KIPP schools are dedicated to students who live in educationally under-resourced areas. At KIPP Metro
Atlanta, our students draw from Atlanta’s West End, Northwest Atlanta, Southeast Atlanta, and the East
Point section of South Fulton County. We serve a student population that is more than 95% African-
American and approximately 75% of families qualify for the Federal Free and Reduced Meals program.
Typically, our fifth grade students enter KIPP scoring in the bottom third of their peers across the nation
on the lowa Test of Basic Skills (ITBS), a national norm referenced test. After spending four years at our

schools, the students finish 8th grade scoring well above the national average.



Across the nation, only 20% of low-income students matricuiate college. By comparison, approximately
85% of students graduating from KIPP schools matriculate college. Locally, college matriculation rates
are difficult to obtain, however, local high school graduation rates do not suggest high college
enrollment. According to the Georgia Report Card, Fulton County Schools has a graduation rate of
approximately 80%, but the rate shrinks to only 63% for students from low-income backgrounds. Atlanta
Public Schools has a graduation rate of 68%. In the 2011-12 school year, KIPP Metro Atlanta saw its first
class of alumni graduate high school. We are pleased to report that 96% of our alumni graduated high

school and 85% were accepted to colleges and universities throughout the country.

To help our students "climb the mountain to college," KIPP subscribes to three key principles: 1) a
shared commitment that all students WILL (not can) learn; 2) high quality, weli-trained teachers and
school leaders; and 3) a "no excuses" approach to education emphasizing hard work, long hours, and
high expectations. Students attend school from 7:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. every day, every other Saturday,
and for three weeks each summer. We embrace a rigorous, college-preparatory curriculum

accompanied by strong character education and consistent discipline.

it is our goal that by ensuring that all of our students have the option to attend college, we are able to
change the life trajectory of our students. By doing so, we hope to fundamentally transform the families
and neighborhoods that we serve. Ultimately, we hope to serve as an example for what is possible in

public education.

Mercer and Georgia State are each natural partners to help estabiish the KIPP Teacher Fellows Program.
Each has a mission that complements the goals we set forth to accomplish in this proposal and each has

demonstrated a high level of enthusiasm for the mission and vision of the program.

Mercer University’s Tift College of Education is committed to preparing candidates to serve as teachers
and educationatl leaders in the schools of our state, nation, and world, and is committed to the pursuit of
excellence in every aspect of educator preparation. Its mission is to prepare students to biend theory
with practice, to think critically, and to interact effectively in a technologically complex, global society.
To accomplish this mission, the Tit College of Education offers undergraduate and graduate degree
programs and educational services designed to meet the needs of diverse students and of the

professional education community.,



Georgia State University also believes investment in teacher guality is an investment in a quality
education for the students of Georgia. Their mission states, “it is our mission to develop educational
leaders and scholars through innovative strategies with a foundation built upon relevant knowledge and
effective practice. Our research will inform the policy-making process of our diverse constituencies at all
levels of decision making. Our leadership programs and policy analyses will be characterized by the
linking of theory, research and practice, and will be evident in our publications, our teaching, and our

service to educational institutions and other public and private entities.”

The KIPP Teacher Fellows Program’s mission is to provide a comprehensive teacher induction program
that increases the pipeline of highly-effective teachers for high-needs students in the Metro Atlanta
region. Our vision is to uitimately increase the number of students in Metro Atlanta who receive a
rigorous, college-preparatory education and who are prepared to successfully complete a college

education and become effective citizens.

KIPP Metro Atlanta has an eight-year history of successfully implementing targe, complex, and rapidly
growing projects. in 2003, we opened our first two middle schools, KIPP WAYS Academy and KIPP South
Fulton Academy. These two schoaols have grown to serve 320 students in grades five through eight, with
30+ faculty and staff, and budgets of over $3 million each. KIPP WAYS and KIPP South Fulton have
achieved great academic success and are setting the standard for pubiic middle school education in the
Georgia. In 2009 and 2010, the Georgia Public Policy Foundation named KIPP WAYS and KIPP South

Fulton the two highest performing middle schools in Georgia serving a majority fow-income population.

With a history of academic success and growing waitlists, it was decided to expand the reach of KIPP
schools in the Metro Atlanta area. In 2007, the KIPP Metro Atlanta Collaborative was formed to oversee
expansion and support existing KIPP schools in the region. Through a comprehensive strategic planning
process, a short-term growth plan was created with the goal of building a pod of seven schools (three
elementary, three middie, and one high school) within Atlanta Public Schools (in addition to our existing
middle school in Fulton County). When fully enrolled, the pod will offer a seamless, rigorous K-12 KIPP

education to 3,300 students each year,

Since committing to the plan, KIPP MAC has opened two additional middle schools, KIPP STRIVE

Academy and KIPP Vision Academy. While still early in their deveiopment, each of these schools has



already demonstrated the strong culture of achievement that defines a KIPP school. This summer we
will open our first high school, KIPP Atlanta Collegiate, and intend to open one elementary school each

year for the following three years,

In order to ensure that our schools have the support needed to reach their academic goals, KIPP MAC
created the Shared Services team in 2008. Led by Executive Director David Jernigan, the Shared Services
team provides operating support to ali KIPP MAC schools. Functions include finance, operation, human
resources, fundraising, communications, facilities, technology, recruiting, and curriculum and
instructional support. By providing this level of support, school leaders are free to focus on fulfilling the

academic missions of their schools.

As our organization grows rapidly, KIPP Metro Atlanta has maintained a relentless focus on results. Our
students regularly outperform their local district, state, and national peers on standardized tests,
including the Georgia Criterion Referenced Competency Test and the lowa Test of Basic Skills. Equally
important, we have maintained a strong school culture, with 93% of parents indicating that they would
recommend KIPP to another family. Additionally, we enjoy strong refationships with our local

community, inciuding the school district, funders, and other community partners.

Since its inception in 2007, KIPP Metro Atlanta Collaborative has managed multiple partnerships aimed
to both engage the community and harness the talents and expertise of local stakeholders in supporting
the educational attainment of KIPP Metro Atlanta students. Through the facilitation of both our regional
office and schoot administrators, we have partnerships with the following organizations:
¢  Mercer University: This partnership serves as a foundation to the future work we will
accomplish through cur KIPP Teacher Fellows Program. Mercer teacher candidates complete
their spring and/or fall Initial Field Experience and Practicum requirements while paired with a
KIPP cooperating teacher within one of our four grade 5-8 middie schools. This partnership
reqguires the collaboration of multiple stakeholders in the ongoing development, support, and
evaluation of a new teacher, including school leaders, deans, KIPP teachers, and university-
based supervisors.
¢ The Rollins Center for Language and Learning: The Roilins Center serves as a resource for
education professionals by sharing research-based language and reading approaches for the

benefit of children and their famities, schools, and communities. The Rollins Center faculty work



as partners with teachers, parents, individual schools, and school systems to provide high
quality professional development experiences. We partner with The Rollins Center to facilitate
ongoing professional development for KIPP Metro Atlanta teachers. Training priorities are
determined by our Director of Curriculum and Instruction, Katie Rigby, who also facilitates
monthly meetings with Rollins to evaluate the effectiveness of each professional development
experience,

Teach For America: Teach for America (“TFA”"} is a non-profit organization that asks recent
college graduates to commit to ending educational inequity by committing at least two years to
teaching in a low-income community. We coordinate corps member placements in our schools
and also provide specialized new teacher support through our Instructional Specialist for TFA
teachers. In addition, we collaborate with TFA to promote education reform conversations and
initiatives throughout the region and to provide a pipeline of TFA alumni to teach in our KIPP
schools.

The Wrens Nest: The Wrens Nest, located in the historic West End of Atlanta, serves as an
education resource for the community and the greater Atlanta area, The Wrens Nest preserves
the legacy of Joel Chandler Harris and the heritage of African American folklore through
storytelling, tours, and student publishing. The Wrens Nest helped to coordinate over 20
volunteers to assist KIPP Scribes from KIPP STRIVE Academy publish their own stories, resuiting
in the 2010 publication of Don’t Forget That Day and it's release at the Decatur Book Festival.
This partnership continued in the 2010-11 school year and the second KIPP Scribes book will be
published in fall 2011.

Talk Black Atlanta: TalkBlack Atlanta is committed to intellectual exchange and dialogue that
prompts active and consistent community involvement and inspires personal change and
growth. TalkBlack has adopted the Class of 2018 at KIPP VISION Academy. Members actively
engage with these 80 students and will support them on their educational journey from 5th
grade to their 2018 graduation. TalkBlack also provides support to KIPP Vision’s school
administration and parents,

Buckhead Rotary: A subsidiary of Rotary International, Buckhead Rotary works to encourage
and foster the ideal of service as a basis of worthy enterprise. The Buckhead Rotary supports
many initiatives at KIPP South Fulton Academy, including funding for computers, career days,

and sponsorship of student activities.



» LukeSports: LukeSports operates flag football, basketball and soccer leagues within KIPP Metro
Atlanta schools, with the mission of using sports as a toel to enhance the student's academic
performance while developing their character, attitude and athietic skills. Over 600 students,
parents, faculty, and volunteers in Metro Atlanta participate in LukeSports on a weekly basis,

s The Bonner Foundation/Morehouse and Spelman Colleges: The Bonner Foundation provides
four-year community service schalarships to approximately 1,500 students annually at
Morehouse and Spelman College. KIPP Metro Atlanta partners with the Foundation to assign
volunteer placements within our schools. The scholarship serves those individuals who have
high financial need and a commitment to service.

*  Emory University: Emory University partners with KIPP Through College to help expose students
1o college life. Through campus visits and other programming, Emory students, faculty, and staff
educate KIPP students about the college enrollment process and the joys and challenges of day-
to-day college life, Starting this year, Emory will host KIPP Atlanta Collegiate’s inaugural

freshman class for a three day on-campus retreat at the start of the school year.

Section 2: Need for Project

It is no secret that students living in high-poverty urban areas are significantly less likely to perform on
grade-tevel, graduate from high school, matriculate college, or graduate from college than their higher-
income peers. In this day and age, where a college education is increasingly necessary to attain and
maintain a viable career, a lack of quality education makes it increasingly difficult for low-income
students to break the cycle of poverty. At KIPP Metro Atlanta, we believe that providing a high-quality,
rigorous, college-preparatory education is the best way to help fundamentally transform the lives of our

students and their families.

Overcoming the challenges of poverty requires a significant investment on our part. First and foremost,
it requires exceptional, talented teachers who are willing to go above and beyond for our students. We
actively seek teachers who have a proven ability to get academic results as well as the ability to connect
with and support our students on an emotional level. This is a rare combination to begin with, and it is

exceptionaily rare to find this combination in 2 new teacher. Thus, we believe it is our responsibility to

help prepare high-potential new teachers to meet the challenges of teaching in high-poverty, urban

environments so that they have the opportunity to make a lasting impact on the lives of students.

10



New teachers, regardiess of the type of school they are teaching in, face an up-hill battle during their
first few years. This battle is only intensified in high-needs urban school settings. Multiple studies on
teacher effectiveness have shown that many new teachers struggle to be effective in their first few
years of teaching. In fact, some studies have shown that new teachers can actually have a negative
impact on student achievement during their first two years of teaching. Although a novice teacher is a
necessary starting point for any potential high quality veteran teacher, students in high poverty schools
are almost twice as likely to be assigned a novice or inexperienced teacher as those on the lowest
poverty schools.” Given that new teachers entering the prafession are often serving students with the
highest needs, it is imperative that we invest in their preparation to ensure that teachers in urban
settings will develop the knowledge, skills, and dispositions to be effective teachers of high poverty

students who are counting on educational attainment, and not poverty, to shape their life prospects.

KIPP Schools are dedicated to students who live in educationally under-resourced areas. The
communities in which our schools are located {Northwest Atlanta, Southwest Atlanta, Southeast
Atlanta, and the East Point section of South Fulton County) have not demonstrated a history of strong,
college-preparatory education and have traditionally struggled to attract and retain highly-effective
teachers. Thus, the cycles of poor educational attainment and poverty are perpetuated in these

neighborhoods.

The majority of our schools are located within Atlanta Public Schools. Within APS, the student body is
89% minority and 78% qualify for the Federal free and reduced price lunch. In the 2010-11 school year,

eighth grade student performance on the Georgia Criterion Referenced Competency Test was as

follows:
% meeting or exceeding standards
Subject Atlanta Public Schools State of Georgla KIPP Metro Atlanta
Reading 92% 96% 98%
English Language Arts 89% 93% 99%
Math 66% 74% 96%
Science 51% 66% 84%
Social Studies 61% 70% 96%

2 . .
Teaching Inequaiity: How Poor and Minority Students are Shortchanged on Teacher Quality: A Report and
Recommendation by the Education Trust” {p. 4), by H. G. Peske, and K. Haycock, 2006, Washington, DC: The Education Trust
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In 2010, Atlanta Public Schools had a graduation rate of only 66% and only 61% of schools made
Adequate Yearly Progress. Together, these statistics indicate a body of students for whom there is a
great need for exceptional teachers. The KIPP Teacher Fellows Program will help ensure that there is a
pipeline of highly-qualified teachers flowing into the local public school system and significantly

impacting the lives of these students.

The KIPP Teacher Fellows program represents an exceptional approach to teacher induction because it
strengthens the link among KIPP Metro Atlanta, local teacher preparation programs, and local school
districts. New teachers who engage in this fellowship have a supported avenue in which to transition
from formal education, to practical application, to full-time classroom teaching within an authentic
context of educating high needs students. KIPP Metro Atlanta is the right place to provide that context
because of our history of superior academic results with students who have historically
underperformed. In addition, to our knowledge, there few teacher fellowship programs in Georgia or
throughout the country that are specifically focused increasing the pipeline of highly-gualified teachers
in urban areas. Nor are we aware of many other programs that, through the implementation of strict
qualifications and compensation of Fellows as full-time first-year teachers, ensure that the highest-

quality candidates will be attracted to the program.

The feliowship is also a promising approach to teacher recruitment because alumni of the program add
to a vetted talent pool that can contribute to the guality of instruction in classrooms across the Metro
Atlanta region. It is our hope that this talent pool will increase the flow of highly-qualified teachers into

schools across the district,

Lastly, the KIPP Teacher Fellows Program wili serve as a replicable moedel for other school districts
throughout the state. By carefully tracking progress and outcomes of the program and building
additional expertise in successful teacher induction, we hope to serve as a resource for other public

education entities wishing to implement a similar program and have a similar impact.

Section 3: Quality of Project Design

The KIPP Teacher Fellows Program will make a significant investment in new, promising teachers who

are committed to teaching in high-poverty urban schools. The program will provide an intense year-long

12



residency for new high-potential teachers who are mission-aligned and show great promise to be ready
for a fuli-time teaching position within a year. KIPP Teacher Fellows will be full-time school-based
employees, compensated as first-year teachers, with significant responsibilities, including:

* Assisting with planning/implementing lessons through co-teaching and/or small group

instruction

e Providing support with student discipline and parent communication

*  Assisting with tutoring students during and/or after school

s Chaperoning/planning local and out of state trips

* Assisting with bus, lunch, and detention duties

¢ Teaching non-core classes as needed {life skills, enrichment, study skills, electives, etc.)

¢ Planning, organizing, and/or sponsoring extracurricular activities

* Serving as a substitute in the absence of a teacher

Through a hands-on apporach, KIPP Teacher Fellows will receive ongoing training through a series of
workshops defivered by master teachers and leaders, coaching by an experienced KIPP master teacher,
and growing responsibilities through a “gradual release” approach. in addition to providing a
recruitment source for teaching positions in Metro Atlanta, KIPP Teacher Fellows will provide significant
support to teachers and students requiring additional one-on-one support, thus strengthening our
instructional program’s efficacy and sustainability. Upon successfufly completing the program, the KIPP
Teacher Fellows program will facilitate fellows securing a teaching position in Metro Atlanta schools. We
are confident that the training provided by the KIPP Teacher Fellows program will greatly increase the
efficacy of new teachers pursuing teaching positions in the Atlanta area, while also strengthening the

collaboration among KIPP Metro Atlanta, local teacher education programs, and the local districts.

We will use the 2011-12 school year as planning year, with the goal of implementing the full program for
the 2012-13 school year. A program director will be hired by January 2012 to oversee the planning,
recruiting, and implementation of the program. We anticipate having six teacher feilows in the first year
of the program {one at each of our schools) and growing the program incrementally in the years that

follow. Should funding allow, we would gladiy grow the program to twenty teachers over time,

The partnership among KIPP Metro Atlanta, Mercer, and Georgia State will have a profound impact on

the students we serve. We will maximize our impact by coordinating a minimum of one development

13



year for Mercer and Georgia State teacher candidates prior to their year-long residency. During the
development year, the teaching candidates will complete pre-service requirements such as an initial
field experience, practicum, and student teaching. Our partnering universities have specific goals around
using this time to expose new teachers to both elementary and secondary, as well as the two content
areas in which they are seeking dual certification. This mode! works well with our region because KIPP
Metro Atlanta will consist of both elementary, middle, and high schools, and candidates will benefit
from placements within a region that has strong instructional vertical alignment and uniting principles

that contribute to an overarching cohesive culture.

We believe it is beneficial to begin the KIPP Teacher Fellows program with a small number of new
teachers so that we can refine the program over time and protect the quality of the teachers’ induction
experience; however, even with the humble beginning of just six teaching fellows, the impact on Metro
Atlanta students is noteworthy. If we grow the program to twenty Fellows by our third year, within five
years the KIPP Teacher Fellows Program will have graduated 78 fellows who will be welt prepared to
meet the needs of high-needs students in Metro Atlanta. If each of those teachers teaches
approximately 90 students a year, in their first post-fellowship year the fellows will collectively provided
an excelient education to over 7,000 Metro Atlanta students. Furthermore, if the fellows, due to the
excellent induction they received into the teaching field, remain in the profession for at least five years,
a yeatly cohort of five feliows will collectively impact approximately 35,000 students. This is a baseline of
what is possible in a five-year period through the partnership of KIPP Metro Atlanta, Mercer University,

and Georgia State University,

Research supports the efficacy of this approach to increasing and sustaining a high-quality teacher
pipeline. Implementation of a fellowship in which teacher candidates engage in a guided, gradual-
release residency alongside a mentor teacher is a growing practice for preparing guality teachers to
meet the social and academic needs of high needs students. An increasing number of teacher
preparation programs are recognizing the need for simuitaneous theoretical and practical training and
an extended phase of well-supervised clinical practice before becoming the teacher of record. Although
strategies for increasing teacher effectiveness traditionally exist at each of the three phases of a
teacher’s career (pre-service, induction, and after three years of teaching) statistics suggest that the
current level of support for teachers, new teachers especially, is not enough. Approximately one-third of

K-12 teachers leave the profession within the first three years of teaching, and almost half of K-12
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teachers leave by their fifth year, debatably before the teacher has had adequate practical experience

and feedback to truly garner effectiveness.’

Research also states that teacher residencies significantly impact not only teacher gquality, but also
teacher retention. For instance, teachers who have had applicable coursework paired with extensive
practical experience alongside a mentor teacher in an urban classroom are more likely to teach with
adaptable, student-centered strategies that support learning when teaching high needs students.”
Furthermaore, teachers who engage in a residency program as part of their preparation for the classroom
are more likely to stay in the profession than those who have limited training before solo teaching.® The
KIPP Teacher Fellows Program wiil replicate the above results because it targets the root causes that
lead to teachers’ potential negative impact on student learning during their first few years of teaching,

as well as the attrition that often follows.

Since residencies intertwine education theory and classroom practice, this mode of learning enables
teacher candidates to develop an understanding of theory in the context of the classroom, school,
community, and region in which the residency takes place. Darling-Hammond notes that this approach
to preparation alfows teacher candidates to grow ‘roots’ on their practice.® Residents learn to teach in
the same district in which they will work, so coursework is more intentionally tailored to the district’s
demographic; likewise, new teachers’ pre-service activities, which in the KIPP Teacher Fellowship will
include an initial field placement, practicum, student teaching, and fellowship year, allows new teachers

to engage in meaningful practice that will directly correlate to their experience as a teacher of record.

3 High Impact Phifanthropy to improve Teaching Quality: Focus on High Needs Secondary Students, The Center for
High impact Phifanthropy, April 9, 2010, part 1

3 Darling-Hammond, L. {2006). Constructing 21st-century teacher education. Journal of Teacher

Education, 57(3), 300-314

> Berry, B. (2001}. No shorteuts to preparing good teachers. Fducational Leadership,

58(8), 32-36.; Darling-Hammond, L. (2003); Keeping good teachers: Why it matters, what leaders can

do. Educational Leadership, 60(8), 6-13; Darling-Hammond, L., Hudson, L. & Kirby, S. (1989); Redesigning teacher
education: Opening the door for new recruits to science and mathematics teaching. Santa Monica, CA: RAND;
Henke, R. R., Chen, X., & Geis, 5. (2000), Progress through the teacher pipeline: 1992-93 college graduates and
elementary/ secondary school teaching as of 1897, Washington, DC; U.S, Department of Education, National
Center for Education Statistics; Humphrey, D.C. & Weschler, M, E. {2005}. Insights into alternative certification;
Preliminary findings from a national study. Teachers College Record, September 2, 2005. Retrieved

September 30, 2005 from http://www.tcrecord.org

& Darting-Hammond, L. (2006). Constructing 21st-century teacher education. Journal of Teacher Education, 57(3),

300-314
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The residency model is grounded in the situative perspective of cognition’ which argues that learning
cannot be separated from the context and activities in which it occurs, or from how it is learned.® We
believe that this approach to teacher preparation will ensure that new teachers in Atlanta develop the
knowledge, skills, and mindsets that are integral to our students’ success prior to entering the classroom

as the teacher of record.

Furthermore, the residency model highlights the reciprocal nature of teaching. As residents learn from
an experienced, trained mentor teacher, the mentor teacher will also benefit from examining his or her
own practices. Residencies create opportunities for master teachers to take on roles as instructional
leaders while maintaining their status as a classroom teacher. Grooming new highiy-effective teachers
while simultaneously creating a pipeline for leadership for successful veteran teachers will ensure we

recruit potential, develop talent, and retain expertise,

The above evidence and research provides extensive support as to how this proposal will improve the
guality of teacher induction. We can curtail the negative impact of a new teacher’s “growing pains” on
student achievement by establishing a coached, gradual release of responsibility while simultaneously
capitalizing on the talent, enthusiasm, and dedication of new teachers to reduce student-teacher ratios.
Through a grant from the Innovation Fund, we can essentially have a new teacher enter year one of the

profession having surpassed the point in the learning curve when most teachers are lost.

This program will also improve our ability to recruit and retain high quality teachers in Atlanta, as
previously mentioned, by closely linking preparation and practice within the context of Atlanta schools.
Teachers are more likely to accept positions as the teacher of record in Atlanta Public Schools having
had multiple opportunities to engage in both the curriculum and community during their pre-service
preparation. Likewise, school leaders are more likely to hire, with confidence, locally prepared teacher
candidates. Having had multiple opportunities to coach, provide feedback, and build relationships with
these potential new hires, KIPP Metro Atlanta school leaders and school feaders throughout Metro

Atlanta wiil have a vetted interest in hiring from a vetted pool of applicants.

7 Putnam, R.7,, & Borko, H. {2000). What do new views of knowledge and thinking have to say about research on

teacher learning? Educational Researcher, 29(1), 4-15
8 Borko, H. & Mayfield, V. (1995). The roles of the cooperating teacher and university supervisor in learning to teach. Teaching
arnid Teacher Fducation, 11(5}, 501-518
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Scope of Work: See Appendix
Section 4: Quality of Project Evaluation

At KIPP Metro Atlanta, we believe there are four core elements to excellent teaching: interpersonal
awareness, a classroom culture that supports achievement, planning for and execution of the teaching
cycle, and the desire to be a life-long learner of one’s craft. Throughout the course of the fellowship, we

will provide ongoing training and professional development centered on these four principles.

We will utilize multiple data points to evaluate not only the successful development of our fellows, but
also the efficacy of the KIPP Teacher Fellows Program overall. Central to the success of the program is
the development of strong new teachers who are prepared to meet the educational needs of students
in fow-income communities. The KIPP Framework for Excellence in Teaching and Teacher Performance
Review will provide Master Teachers, University Supervisors, and other staff invelved in supporting the
Fellows a comprehensive understanding of each new teacher’s acquisition of the knowledge and skills
necessary for strong instruction and management. The KIPP Framework for Excellence in Teaching
provides clarity around what each of these four elements looks and sounds like in the classroom, and
also supports a community of practice in which there is a common language to discuss teacher actions
that lead to student success. Furthermore, the Teacher Performance Review is the basis on which our
teachers set their goals for the year and subsequently monitor their progress over time. The data and
performance feedback garnered from this system of evatuation will provide a wealth of information to
facilitate the recruitment of new teachers who will successfully transition to the role of the teacher of
record in Atlanta schools. A copy of the Framework and Performance Review has been included in the

appendix.

Student achievement will be measured through a variety of means, including daily classroom
assessments, four regional assessments KIPP administers to all students quarterly, and also district
assessments such as the 1TBS, CRCT, and EQCT. The Fellowship Director and Master Teachers will
analyze classroom data to determine daily efficacy in the teaching of specific standards and objectives,
which is a critical interim step to monitoring the long term development of students. Student
achievement data will provide insight on the performance of feilows, and in turn, their coaches, as well

as inform the effectiveness of the implementation of the fellowship program.
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Feedback on the program experience from Master Teachers and the Fellows will also be a critical data
point to determine the success of the program. We will utilize satisfaction surveys at the midpoint of
each academic quarter to gauge what is contributing to positive experiences in the fellowship for

stakehoiders and also any pain points that need problem solving,

We are confident that we have developed a robust method of evaluation that will measure the degree
to which the KIPP Fellows Program has been successfully implemented, and also inform interim steps we
should take to strengthen the program over time. Evaluation is truly reciprocal, and our students’
achievement in the classroom wiil be the ultimate indicator of whether our teaching fellows are
developing into successful new teachers, which will inform whether our Master teachers are effectively
supporting and coaching our fellows, which will inform whether the Director of the KIPP fellowship
Program has adequately trained Master teachers and provided ongoing feedback and leadership
development. The core elements of the evaluation system mentioned above {teacher effectiveness
through the KIPP Framework for Excellence in Teaching, quantifiable student achievement data, and
program experience metrics derived from surveys) provide meaningful data on how to replicate positive

results in other educational settings.

A grant from the Innovation Fund will help ensure that we have sufficient resources to implement this
program. As mentioned previously, we will use the 2011-12 schoot year as a planning period for the
program. This portion of the program will be funded through the KIPP Metro Atlanta operations budget.
Funding for the first three years of the KIPP Teacher Fellows program will be provided by both the
[nnovation Fund and private funding secured through the KIPP Metro Atlanta Development Department.
Our ability to grow the program will be dependent on our ability to secure the necessary funding.
However, our history of fundraising success suggests that we will be able to source the private funds

necessary to sustain the program at a minimum of eight teachers after the first three years.
Project Evaluation Table: See Appendix
Section 5: Quality of Project Management Plan

KIPP Metro Atlanta has a long history of effectively implementing, managing, and growing large, multi-

faceted programs. KIPP Metro Atlanta provides financial and operational support and oversight to KIPP
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Metro Atlanta schools, develops instructional initiatives designed to strengthen the schools’ academic
programs, and implements each school’s high school placement and alumni services through the KIPP
Through College Program. Within this entity there are a number of stakeholders that will collaboratively
support a success partnership between KIPP Metro Atlanta and our partnering institutions — Mercer

University and Georgia State University.

Our Executive Director, David Jernigan, provides overarching leadership for all KIPP Metro Atlanta
initiatives. As the founding principal of KIPP WAYS Academy, David has a wealth of experience in
overseeing the development of both new and veteran teachers, and his expertise has been and will
continue to be a great resource in development the KIPP Teacher Fellows program. in addition, David
has overseen the growth and development of the KIPP Metro Atlanta region from two schools to five
over the last three years, while meeting alt academic, operational, and financial objectives. David is a
Morehead Scholar and graduate of the University of North Carolina. He received his teaching
certification through Georgia State University’s Urban Alternative Teacher Certification Program and his

Masters in Educationat Administration from National Louis University in Chicago.

Our Director of Curriculum and Instruction, Katie Rigby, leads our region in instructional professional
development and oversees curricular decisions. As a former Teach For America corps member, teacher
at KiPP WAYS academy, Curriculum Specialist, and Instructional Specialist, Katie uses her abundance of
experience to inform professional development and instructional initiatives within the region, Katie will
directly manage the Director of the KIPP Teacher Fellow Program in establishing sustainable systems of
professionat development, evaluation, and coaching. Katie holds a degree in Communication and
Religion from Wake Forest University and a Masters in Education Policy and Management from

Harvard’s Graduate School of Education.

Our Curriculum Specialist, Monica Groves, will play an integral part in facilitating ongoing conversation
between KIPP Metro Schools and the partnering institutions. This role currently coordinates initial field
experience placermnents and practicum placements and wiil continue to execute this function for teacher
fellows during their development year at KIPP priar to residency. Additionally, this role will provide
operational support to the Program Director to coordinate program logistics and pair fellows with

Master teachers throughout the region. Monica holds a dual degree in English Language and Literature
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and Spanish from the University of Virginia and a Masters in Teaching and Curriculum from Harvard’s

Graduate School of Education.

Kaye Thomas, Director of Field Placement, wili be our primary partner at Mercer University. Ms. ‘
Thomas oversees the cocrdination of all field experiences for Undergradute, MAT, and Holistic Child
Program. Under the direction of Ms. Thomas, students are exposed to a variety of field experience
settings to complete their program of study. In addition to her work with Mercer, Ms, Thomas has

experience in public school settings as a teacher and administrator and Teacher Induction Initiatives.

Gwendolyn Benson, Associate Dean of School and Community Partnerships, will be our primary partner
at Georgia State University. She joined Georgia State University from the Georgia Department of
Education where she served as Coordinator of the Low Incidence Disabilities Unit, Division for
Exceptional Students. Previously she served as Director of Educator Preparation for the Georgia
Professional Standards Commission and Director of the Program for Exceptional Children with the
Atlanta Georgia Public Schools. She was an associate professar at Southern University at Baton Rouge,
Louisiana, assistant professor at Louisiana State University and has taught graduate courses at Clark-
Atlanta University as an adjunct professor. Dr. Benson holds a doctorate from the University of Kansas.

Dr. Benson also serves as the Director of the Alonzo A. Crim Center for Urban Educational Excellence.

The Director of The KIPP Teacher Fellows Program will be a strong instructional leader. This person will
be charged with developing and managing the Teacher Fellows Program, including delivering
professional development, coaching and evaluating fellows, and interfacing with school leaders to
ensure satisfaction with performance. We will start actively seeking candidates in September 2011 with
the intent of having a Program Director in place by January 2012, His or her qualifications will include
the following:

» Bachelor’s degree is required; Masters degree is preferred

s Proven track record as classroom teacher

* Experience coaching and developing successful teachers

* Strong analytical ability and experience using data to inform decision-making

e Strategic thinker; ability to think critically about issues and solutions

s Excellent organizational skills and attention to detail

* Team-player capabie of working both collaboratively and independently
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» Flexible and strong ability to multi-task and prioritize

¢ Thrives in entrepreneurial start-up environment and working conditions; can work within an
ambiguous, fast-moving environment while aiso driving toward clarity and solutions

s Self-starter with demonstrated resourcefulness

» Stronginterpersonal and communication skills

* Personal qualities of integrity, credibility, and commitment to the mission of KIPP Metro Atlanta

At the organizational level, KIPP Metro Atlanta is well-qualified to oversee the KIPP Teacher Fellows
Program. in each year of operation, we have successfully met our financial and operational goals. These
inciude operating within our budgets, building sufficient financial reserves to weather any unforeseen
circumstances, and meeting or exceeding all fundraising goals. We are confident that we have the

resources and expertise necessary to sustain the KIPP Teacher Fellows Program in the same fashion.

Section 6: Quality of Sustainability Plan

A three year, 51,050,000 grant from the Innovation Fund will provide necessary start-up funding for the
Teacher Fellows program. When the grant term is complete, we will use a variety of resources to
sustain the program. As public schools, we receive per pupil allocations from the school districts in
which we operate. Should public funding stay at a sustainable level, we will be able to use some of

these funds to support the program. Additional funding will come from private sources.

KIPP Metro Atlanta employs a multi-pronged approach to fundraising, focusing on cultivating and
stewarding foundation, corporate, and individual donors. A current strategic focus of the development
program is the identification and engagement of a broad individual donor base to support annuat
fundraising needs. The Development Committee of the Board of Directors, supported by the Director of
Development, works diligently to expand our outreach in Metro Atlanta and add to our funding base.
Board and Committee members host "gatherings” throughout the year to help increase awareness and
introduce their friends and colleagues to our work. Additionally, we host regular tours of our schools to
give potential donors the opportunity to see our scholars in action. We have successfully met or
exceeded our fundraising goals in each year of operation and anticipate that this will continue in the
future. We also anticipate that the unique and impactful nature of the Teacher Fellows program wil

have a special draw for donors looking to invest in something critical to our long-term success.
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To date, we have not approached any of our funders with a specific request to support the Teacher
Fellows Program. However, we have already secured a significant amount of unrestricted operating
funds for the coming years that could be directed to support the program. We have $1.7 million in
unrestricted operating funds committed for the 2011-12 fiscal year, which will be the pianning year for
the program. For Fiscal Years 2013-2015, we have 2.4 million in unrestricted operating funds

committed.

There are a number of internal stakeholders who are committed to the successful launch of the KIPP
Teacher Fellows Program. Our school leaders, for whom a stronger teacher pipeline will have the
greatest impact, are eager to help develop more highly-effective teachers. We have heard from a
number of our senior teachers that the opportunity to grow professionally in the role of Master Teacher
would be welcome. Lastly, our organizational leadership and Board of Directors, recognizing how critical
effective teaching is to the health and vitality of our organization, are also committed to the success of

the KIPP Teacher Feltows Program.

As we have grown our region, KIPP Metro Atianta has benefitted from broad community support and we
anticipate these same partners will be supportive of the Teacher Fellows program. We enjoy strong
partnerships with Atlanta Public and Fulton County school districts, as evidenced by the granting and
renewal of our charter applications. Qur partner organization, Teach for America, has supported us
since our founding, assisting with professional development for our teachers and helping to place
competitive teacher candidates in our talent pool. We expect TFA's knowledge and expertise in teacher
training to be a valuahle resource to us as we build the Teacher Felfows program. The Rolling Center is
eager to work with us to further develop the professional development offerings for the program,
Lastly, as evidenced by their willingness to serve as partners in this endeavor, Georgia State and Mercer

have also committed to seeing the program thrive.
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IV. Proposal Budget

Name of Partnership:

"Project Year 1."

Applicants requesting Venture grants should complete the column under
Applicants requesting funding for Enterprise grants
should complete all applicabie columns. Please read all instructions before
completing form.

Budget Categories Project Year 1 Project Year 2 Project Year 3 Total
(a) {b) {c) {d)

1. Personnel 270,870 276,135 275,763 822,768
2. Fringe Benefits 60,035 61,594 61,821 183,450
3. Travel 4,583 4,817 4,926 14,326
4. Equipment 6,874 1,032 824 8,830
5. Supplies 3,055 1,604 1,640 6,300
6. Contractual
7. Construction
8. Other 4,583 4,817 4,926 14,326
9. Total Direct Costs (lines
1-8) 350,000 350,000 350,000 1,456,000
10. indirect Costs*
11. Training Stipends
12. Total Costs (lines 9-11) 350,000 350,000 _ 350220_ 1,059-,000

Budget Categories

Project Year 1 Project Year 2 Project Year 3 Total
(2) (b) {c) {d)

1. Personnet 83,766 361,975 735,341 1,181,081
2. Fringe Benefits 18,565 82,180 168,809 269,554
3. Travel 1,417 6,848 14,603 22,868
4. Equipment 2,126 5,136 8,762 16,024
5. Suppties 945 2,280 4,863 8,088
6. Contractual
7. Construction
8. Other 1,417 6,848 14,603 22,868
9. Total Direct Costs (lines
1-8) 108,236 465,268 946,980 1,520,404
10. indirect Costs*®
11. Training Stipends
12. Totai Costs (lines 9-11) 108,236 465,268 946,980 1,520,404




Section C~ BUDGET NARRATIVE

Fiscal responsibility for the KIPP Teacher Fellows Program is divided between the Innovation Fund and
private funds raised by KIPP Metro Atlanta. We are requesting a total of $1,050,000 from the
Innovation Fund to help start the program. Remaining funds will be the responsibitity of KIPP Metro

Atlanta.

We will formally faunch the program in the 2012-13 school year with & fellows and grow it to twenty

fellows by the 2014-15 school year.

Personnel costs: Includes salaries for the Program Director {$75,000/year) and each of the Teacher
Feliows {$46,606/year). As stated previously, the Teacher Fellows will be paid at the salary level of a
KIPP first-year teacher, as a reflection of their level of education and experience as well as the time
commitment and variety of duties that will be expected of them. At KIPP Metro Atlanta, teachers are
paid approximately 10% more than the local school district to compensate them for the extended day

and extended school year,

Fringe Benefits: Includes the portion paid by KIPP Metro Atlanta for medical, dental, and vision
insurance, Medicare, and the Teachers Retirement System of Georgia retirement plan. These fees equal

a maximum of $6,200 per employee plus 10.28% of the employee’s base salary.

Travel: Each summer, teachers and staff from across the nationwide KIPP network gather for the annual
KIPP School Summit (KSS}. KSS is a unique opportunity to meet and share experiences and best
practices with colleagues from across the country and provides a powerful professional development
experience for all involved. We have budgeted for the Teacher Fellows to attend KSS during their
fellowship year and estimate the cost of attendance at $1,000 per fellow (this may vary depending on

that year's KSS location).

Equipment: We will be providing each Teacher Fellow with a laptop computer to use during the
duration of their fellowship. We have budgeted $1,500 for each computer and plan to reuse each

machine for at least three years.
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Supplies: We have budgeted $333 per Fellow each year for supplies. Items purchased may include (but

are not limited to) office supplies, teaching supplies, and professional development materials.

Other: We intend to pay each Master Teacher a stipend of $1,000 to compensate them for the extra

responsibility and time they will be expected to contribute.
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A-2
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU]) is eniered into by and between the Governor's Office of
Planning and Budget (OPB) and KIPP Teacher Felws  Progasbartnership).  The purpose of this
agreement is to establish a framework of collaboration, as well as articulate specific roles and
responsibilities in support of the State in its implementation of approved Innovation Fund projects.

I SCOPE OF WORK
Exhibit 1, the Preliminary Scope of Work, indicates the work that the Partnership is agreeing to
implement.

il PROJECT ADMINISTRATION

A. PARTNERSHIP RESPONSIBILITIES

The Partnership agrees 1o:

1) Tmplement the plan as identified in Exhibit I of this agreement;

2} Actively participate in all relevant convenings. communities of practice, or other practice-sharing
events thal are organized or sponsered by OPB, the Georgia Department of Education, the Governor's
Office of Student Achievement and the US Department of Fducation;

3} Postto any website specilied by the State in a timely manmer, all non-proprietary products and lessons
learned using funds associated with the Innovation Fund;

4) Participate, as requested, in any evaluations of this grant conducied by the State or agency conducting
business on behalf of the Stae;

5) Be responsive to State requests for information including the staws of the project, project
mplementation, outcomes, and any problems anticipated or encountered; and

6) Participale in meetings and telephone conferences with the State to discuss {a) progress of the mojecy,
{b} patential dissemination of resulting non-proprietary products and lessons learned, (¢} plans for
subsequent years of the Innovation Fund grant period, and (&) other matters related 10 the Innovation
Fund grant and associated plans.

B. STATE RESPONSIBILITIES

The State agrees (o:

13 Timely distribute the Partnership’s grant during the course of the project period;

2) Provide feedback on the Parnership’s status updates, annual reports, any interim reports, and projects
plans and products; anx

3) Idenlify sources of technical assistance for the project.

C. JOINT RESPONSIBILITIES

1) OFB and the Partnership will each appoint a key conlact person for the Inpovation Fund erant.

2) These key contacts from OPB and the Partnership will maintain frequent communication (o facilitate
cooperation under this MOU,

3) Stale and Parmership grant personnel will work together (0 determine appropriale iimelines for
project updates and status reports (hroughout the grant period.

4) State and Partmership grant personnel will negotiate in good laith to continue to achieve the overall
goals of the Innovation Fund.

D. STATE RECOURSE FOR PARTNERSHIP NON-PERFORMANCE

If OPB determines that the Parinership is not meeling its goals, timelines, budget, or annual targets or is
not fullilling other applicable requirements, OPB will take appropriate enforcement action, which could
include a coflaborative process belween OPR and the Partnership. or any ol the enforcement measures

Georgia RT3 Innovation Fand REP Governor's Office of Planning & Budgel March 31, 2011 Page 35 of 49
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that are detailed in 34 CFR section 80.43 including putting the Partnership on reimbursement payment
status, temporarily withholding funds, or disallowing costs.

III.  ASSURANCES

The Partnership hereby certifies and represents that it:

1) Has all requisite power and authority to execute this MOU;

2) Agrees to implement the work indicated in Exhibit I, if funded;

3) Will comply with all terms of the grant and all applicable Federal and State laws and regulations,
including laws and regulations applicable to the Race to the Top program and the applicable
provisions of EDGAR (34 CFR Parts 74,75, 77, 79, 80, 81, 82, 84, 85, 86, 97, 98 and 99).

Iv. MODIFICATIONS
This Memorandum of Understanding may be amended only by written agreement signed by each of the

parties involved.

V. DURATION/TERMINATION _
This Memorandum of Understanding shall be effective, beginning with the date of the last signature

hereon and, if a grant is received, ending upon the expiration of the grant project period, or upon mutual
agreement of the parties, whichever occurs first.

VI SIGNATURES

Partnership Executive Official — required:

X,
O

Dand W. Jern “"iw / Giccafive. Divech

Print Name/Title

Partnership Member

Parthership-¥e require(l'
UM (o / \ O/ (l

Signature/Date

D. Scott Davis, Senior Vice Provost for Research and Dean of Graduate Studies, Mercer University

Print Name/Title

Partnership Member — required:

Signature/Date

Print Name/Title
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that are detailed in 34 CFR section 80.43 including putting the Partnership on reimbursement payment
status, temporarily withholding funds, or disallowing costs.

III.  ASSURANCES

The Partnership hereby certifies and represents that it:

1) Has all requisite power and authority to execute this MOU;

2) Agrees to implement the work indicated in Exhibit I, if funded;

3) Will comply with all terms of the grant and all applicable Federal and State laws and regulations,
including laws and regulations applicable to the Race to the Top program and the applicable
provisions of EDGAR (34 CFR Parts 74,75, 77, 79, 80, 81, 82, 84, 85, 86, 97, 98 and 99).

IV.  MODIFICATIONS
This Memorandum of Understanding may be amended only by written agreement signed by each of the

parties involved.

V. DURATION/TERMINATION ‘
This Memorandum of Understanding shall be effective, beginning with the date of the last signature
hereon and, if a grant is received, ending upon the expiration of the grant project period, or upon mutual

agreement of the parties, whichever occurs first.

VI.  SIGNATURES

Partnership E ive Official - required:

Ta wd, w- Jern » o

. v -
Print Name/Title

Partnership Member

Partnership Member - required:

won s Lenson 6/@7 ‘?///

Si gnawre/DaLe

@wcna/aAn ﬂenfdﬂ //4&@0/014 ézoan 6¢0r5m Stae umw’SHj

Print Name/Title

Partnership Member - required:

Signature/Date

Print Name/Title
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A-3
ASSURANCES

The Applicant hereby assures and certifies compliance with all federal statutes, regulations, policies,
guidelines and requirements, including OMB Circulars No. A-21, A-87, A-110, A-122, A-133; E.O.
12372 and Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements 28 CFR, Part
66, Common rule, that govern the application, acceptance and use of federal funds for this federally-
assisted project.

Also the Applicant assures and certifies that:

i.

10.

It possesses legal authority to apply for the grant; that a resolution, motion or similar action has been
duly adopted or passed as an official act of the applicant's governing body, authorizing the filing of
the application, including all understandings and assurances contained therein, and directing and
authorizing the person identified as the official representative of the applicant to act in connection
with the application and to provide such additional information

It will comply with requirements of the provisions of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Reat
Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provides for fair and equitable treatment of
persons displaced as a result of federal and federally - assisted programs.

It will comply with provisions of federal law which limit certain political activities of employees of a
State or local unit of government whose principal employment is in conrnection with an activity
financed in whole or in part by federal grants. (5 USC 1501, et seq.)

It will comply with the minimum wage and maximum hours provisions of the Federal Fair Labor
Standards Act if applicable.

It will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that is or
gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private gain for themselves or others,
particularly those with whom they have family, business, or other ties.

It will give the sponsoring agency or the Comptroller General, through any authorized representative,
access to and the right to examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the grant.

It will comply with all requirements imposed by the federal sponsoring agency concerning special
requirements of law, program requirements, and other administrative requirements.

It will insure that the facilities under its ownership, lease or supervision which shail be utilized in the
accomplishment of the project are not listed on the Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) list of
Violating Facilities and that it will notify the federal grantor agency of the receipt of any
communication from the Director of the EPA Office of Federal Activities indicating that a facility to
be used in the project is under consideration for listing by the EPA.

it will comply with the flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a} of the Flood Disaster
Protection Act of 1973, Public Law 93-234, 87 Stat. 975, approved December 31, 1976, Section
102(a) requires, on and after March 2, 1975, the purchase of flood insurance in communities where
such insurance is available as a condition for the receipt of any federal financial assistance for
construction or acquisition purposes for use in any area that has been identified by the Secretary of
the Department of Housing and Urban Development as an area having special flood hazards, The
phrase "federal financial assistance” includes any form of loan, grant, guaranty, insurance payment,
rebate, subsidy, disaster assistance ioan or grant, or any other form of direct or indirect federal
assistance.

It will assist the federal grantor agency in its compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic
Preservation Act of 1966 as amended (16 USC 470), Executive Order 11593, and the Archeological
and Historical Preservation Act of 1966 (16 USC 569 a-1 et seq.) by (a) consulting with the State
Historic Preservation Officer on the conduct of investigations, as necessary, to identify properties
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11.

13.

14.

15;

16.

17

listed in or eligible for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places that are subject to adverse
effects (see 36 CFR Part 800.8) by the activity, and notifying the federal grantor agency of the
existence of any such properties, and by (b) complying with all requirements established by the
federal grantor agency to avoid or mitigate adverse effects upon such properties. :

It will comply, and assure the compliance of all its sub-grantees and contractors, with the applicable
provisions of Title I of the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, as amended, the
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act, or the Victims of Crime Act, as appropriate; the
provisions of the current edition of the Office of Justice Programs Financial and Administrative
Guide for Grants, M7100.1; and all other applicable federal laws, orders, circulars, or regulations.

. It will comply with the provisions of 28 CFR applicable to grants and cooperative agreements

including Part 18, Administrative Review Procedure; Part 20, Criminal Justice Information Systems;
Part 22, Confidentiality of Identifiable Research and Statistical Information; Part 23, Criminal
Intelligence Systems Operating Policies; Part 30, Intergovernmental Review of Department of Justice
Programs and Activities; Part 42, Nondiscrimination/Equal Employment Opportunity Policies and
Procedures; Part 61, Procedures for Implementing the National Environmental Policy Act; Part 63,
Floodplain Management and Wetland Protection Procedures; and federal laws or regulations
applicable to Federal Assistance Programs.

It will comply, and all its contractors will comply, with the nondiscrimination requirements of the
Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, as amended, 42 USC 3789(d), or Victims of
Crime Act (as appropriate); Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; Subtitle A, Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act
(ADA) (1990); Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975;
Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations, 28 CFR Part 42, Subparts C, D, E, and G;
and Department of Justice regulations on disability discrimination, 28 CFR Part 35 and Part 39.

In the event a federal or state court or federal or state administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex,
or disability against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office
for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs.

It will provide an Equal Employment Opportunity Program if required to maintain one, where the
application is for $500,000 or more.

It will comply with the provisions of the Coastal Barrier Resources Act (P.L. 97-348) dated October
19, 1982 (16 USC 3501 et seq.) which prohibits the expenditure of most new federal funds within the
units of the Coastal Barrier Resources System.

It will comply will all ARRA requirements. All funds must be spent with an unprecedented level of
transparency and accountability. Accordingly, recipients of ARRA funds must maintain accurate,
complete, and reliable documentation of all ARRA expenditures.

Extdbin Divedr 6/3‘/ [l

Date
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A-4
NON-SUPPLANTING CERTIFICATION

Regulations require certification to the effect that grant funds will not be used to increase state or local
funds that would, in the absence of such grant aid, be made available for the purpose of this grant
program.

CERTIFICATION:
[ certify that grant funds will not be used to supplant state or local funds that would otherwise be available

for implementation of this grant program.

I further certify that the program proposed in the grant application meets all the requirements of the
applicable Race to the Top Innovation Fund Request for Proposal; that all the information presented is
correct and that the applicant will comply -with the provisions of the Governor’s Office of Planning and
Budget, all applicable federal and state laws, and the above mentioned certification should a grant be

awarded.

w
( Signature A 0
Excubve Divech— (/50/11

Title Date
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IMMIGRATION AND SECURITY FORM

A. In order to insure compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), D.L. 99-
603 and the Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance Act OCGA 13-10-90 et.seq., Contractor must
initial one of the sections below:

Contractor has 500 or more employees and Contractor warrants that Contractor has complied with the
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), D.L. 99-603 and the Georgia Security and
Immigration Compliance Act by registering at https://www.vis-dhs.com/EmployerRegistration and
verifying information of all new employees; and by executing any affidavits required by the rules and
regulations issued by the Georgia Department of Labor set forth at Rule 300-10-1-.01 et.seq. Contractor
has 100-499 employees and Contractor warrants that no later than July 1, 2008, Contractor will register at
https://www.visdhs.com/EmployerRegistration to verify information of all new employees in order to
comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), D.L. 99-603 and the Georgia
Security and Immigration Compliance Act; and by executing any affidavits required by the rules and
regulations issued by the Georgia Department of Labor set forth at Rule 300-10-1-.01 et.seq. Contractor
has 99 or fewer employees and Contractor warrants that no later than July 1, 2009, Contractor will
register at https://www.visdhs.com/EmployerRegistration to verify information of all new employees in
order to comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), D.L. 99-603 and the
Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance Act; and by executing any affidavits required by the rules
and regulations issued by the Georgia Department of Labor set forth at Rule 300-10-1-.01 et.seq.

B. Contractor warrants that Contractor has included a similar provision in all written agreements with any

subcontractors engaged to perform site under this Contract.

Authorizing Official:
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING (ED 80-0013)
Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans and Cooperative Agreements.

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned,
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal
grant, the making of any Federal Loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan
or cooperative agreement.

2) If any funds other Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loam or cooperative agreement, the undersigned
shall complete and submit Standard Form — LLL, “Disclosure of Lobbying Activities,” in
accordance with its instructions.

3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Statement for Loan Guarantees and Loan Insurance.
The undersigned states, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

If any funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee or any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this commitment providing for the United States
to insure or guarantee a loan, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure
of Lobbying Activities,” in accordance with its instructions. Submission of this statement is a prerequisite
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who
fails to file the required statement shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more
than $100,000 for each such failure.

Authorizing Official:
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A-7
OTHER CERTIFICATIONS

Regulations require certification to the effect that grant funds will not be used to increase state or local
funds that would, in the absence of such grant aid, be made available for the purpose of this grant
program.

1. Any person associated with the program that has reasonable cause to believe that a child has been or is
being abused, shall be required to report or cause report to be made with regard to the abuse as provided
in O.C.G.A. 19-7-5.

2. Background investigations (Georgia Crime Information Center) are required on all persons with direct
contact with children and youth. It is left to the discretion of the Partnership to determine the
methodology for completing these investigations.

3. Establish/enforce an Internet Security Policy when minor participants and/or staff have online access
(supervised or unsupervised). This includes any technology provided by PLC funding and technology
used by participants.

4. The grantee agrees to comply with Public Law 103-227, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,
which requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owed or leased or
contracted for by the grantee and used routinely or regularly for the provision of healthy care, day care,
early childhood development site, education or library site to children under the age of 18. Failure to
comply with the provisiohs of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty up to

$1,000 for each violation and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the grantee.

Authorizing Ofﬁ%
v
Signature e d &,
E veudor. Divec 6/3/11

Title Date
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA
COLLABORATIVE, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Consolidared Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Activities
Consolidated Statement of Cash lows
Notes to Financial Srarements
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULKS:

Supplemental Consolidating Statements of Financial Position - June 30, 2010
Supplemental Consoltdating Statements of [Minancial Position — June 30, 2009

Supplemental Consolidating Statement of Activities — June 30, 2010
Supplemiental Consolidating Statement of Activities — June 30, 2009

supplemental Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows — June 30, 2010
Supplementat Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows — June 30, 2009

Supplemental Fund Level Balance Sheer — KIPP
WAYS Academy - June 30, 2010

Supplemental 'und Level Activities Income Statement
- KIPP WAYS Academy — Year Ended June 30, 2010

supplemental Fund Level Balance Sheer — KIPP
STRIVIZ Academy - June 30, 2010

Supplemental Tund Tevel Acrivities Income Statement
- KIPP STRIVIS Academy — Year Haded June 30, 2010
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Schedule of Federal Awards

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROIL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTOL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133
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McKelvey & Russell, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
KIPP Merro Atlanta Coltaborative, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated sttements of financial position of KiPP
Merro Atlanta Collaborative, Inc. (a nonprofit corporationy as of fune 30, 2010 and 2009, and the
related consolidated statements of activiries and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of KIPP Metro Atlanta Collaborative, Ine’s management. Qur
responsibility Is to express an opinion on these financial starements based on our audit.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards gencerally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gozernment
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obuin reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluaung
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
tor our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present faiely, in all material
respects, the financial pos‘ition of KIPP Metro Atanta Collaborarive, Inc. as of June 30, 2010 and
2009, and the ¢h angcs in its net assets and cash flows for the vear then ended in conformity with
accounting principies penerally accepted in the United Srates of America.

In accordance with Garernment Awditing Standurds, we have also issued our report dated
September 15, 2010, on our consideration of KIPP Metro Atlanta Collaborative, Inc’s internal
control over financial reporting and our tests of jts compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants agreements and other matters. ‘The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal contrel over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that wesdng and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over the financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audir performed in accordance with
Gowernment Auditing Standardy and should be considered in assessing the results of our audir,

MKty Russal, UC

Cerrified Public Accountants
January 15, 2011

Posp (e Box 1030
Precatar, Georatu 303 1026
Plione: -1 3759077
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

ASSITS
2010 2009
CURRENT ASSIEETS:
Cash in banks S 2,944,402 S 2,771,194
Grangs receivabic 4,706,604 799,774
Accounts receivable 5,258 14,137
Receivable from affiliate 17,897 33,759
Prepaid expenses 9,947 28,390
Total Current Assets 7,684,108 3,647,254
GRANT RECEIVABLIE - long term 2,283,333 1,600,000
FURNITURE AND COMPUTERS at remaining cost 2,265,234 1,648,721
Toral Assers & 12,232,675 § 6,295,975
LIABILITIES AND NIV ASSIVLS
CURRENT LIABHLITIES:
Accrued labilites 3 172,206 g 543 875
Unecarned revenue 3,028 .
Pass-through grants payable 168,150 200,000
Total Current Liabilitics 343,384 743,873
NIET ASSETS:
Unrestricted 4,625,372 3,098,614
Temporanly restricred 7,203,919 2,453,488
Total Ner Assets 11,889,291 5,552,102
Total Liabilities and Net Assers 3 12,232.675 s 6,295,975

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

1
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

UNRESTRICTRED NI ASSHTS:
REVENUE AND SUPPORT:
Government grants
Atanta Public School district funding
Foundation grants
Contributions and grants
Academic and management services
Student meal income
Interest income
Other income
Net assers released from restrictions:
Capital campaign
Other restrictions
‘Total Revenue and Support

FXPENSES:
Program services
Management and general
Fundraising
Totwal Expenses
Increase in Unrestricted Net Assets
TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSIZTS:
Foundation grants:
Capital campaign
Other restricuons
Contributions and grants
Net assets released from restrictions:
Capital campaign
Other restricuons
Increase in Temporarily Restricted Net Assers
CHANGIL IN NET ASSETS
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSIFIS AT END OF YIEAR

‘The accompanying notes are an integral pare of these financial starements.

2
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S 812,586

2009

§ 445,617

4293423 3,235,074
1,039,081 631,659
254,952 357,440
130,129 48 404
16,053 24,370
14,601 5,574
26,035 50,164
1,763,237 334,712
_.....270,000 498,320
8,620,097 5,631,334
6,216,371 4,315,897
713,242 578,853
152063 133,204
7,081,676 5,028,044
1,538 421 603,290
4,028,668 1,300,000
2,809,000 1,383,320
6,000 3,200
(1,763,237) 334,712)
(270,000) (498,320)
4,810,431 1853488
6,348,852 2,456,778
(11,663) ;
5,552,102 3,095,324
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

CASH FLOW FROM OPLERATING ACTIVITILS

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets
to net cash provided by operating actviues:
Depreciation
Prior period adjustment
Change 1n:
Grants receivable - current
Accounts receivable
Recetvable from atfiliate
Receivable - Federal Food program
Prepaid expenses
Grant receivable - long term
Accrued labilides
Unearned revenue
Due to affihate
Pass-through grants payvable

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities
NICTINCRIEEASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH IN BANKS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH N BANKS, END OF YIEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

3

20140

S 6,348,852

131,458 123,285
(11,663) .
(5,427,142) (397,010)

(25,310) (14,137)
(4,552) (36,517)

: 50,738
18,443 (6,936)

- (775,000)
(371,667) 368,304
3,028 (45,048)
20,414 18,235
239,318 (60,000)
921,179 1,682,692
(7147979 (463,512)
747.971) (463,512)
173,208 1,219,180
2,771,194 1,552,014

$ 2,044,402

$ 2,771,194
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

1. ORGANIZATION

KIPP Metro Adanta Collaborative, Inc. (the Organization) is a not-for-profit organization
whose mission is to prepare students within the City of Atanta, Georgia and Iulton (-:'OLII.}Y}',
Georgia for top quality high schools, colleges, and the competitive years beyond. ‘The ()rgan!.zaf.lon
is made up of five divisions: 1) KIPP Metro Adanta shared services division which provides
academic and management services to the KIPP charter middles schools in the City of Atlanta,
Georgia and Fulton County, Georgia as well as seeks and develops the funding sources to support
the KIPP middle schools, .2) KIPP STRIVE Academy — a KIPP charter public middle school 3)
KIPP WAYS Academy — a KIPP charter public middle school and 4) KIPP Vision — a KIPP
charter public middle school and 5) KIPP through College — provides scholarships, academic
supporst, social services and high school/college placement services for KIPP alumni,

The Organizadon formed as a non-profit corporation under the laws of the state of Georgia
in March 2007 and is cxempt from federal income taxes under the provision of Section 501(¢) (3) of
the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, the Organization is not required to pay federal taxes on
income, and contributions to the Organization qualify for the charitable contributions deduction to
the extent provided by Section 170 of the Internal Revenue Code.

Lffective January 1, 2009, KIPP WAYS Academy, Inc. and KIPP STRIVE Academy, [nc.
merged into KIPP Metro Atlanta Collaborative, inc. and became a division of KIPP Metro Atlanta
Collaborative, Inc.  Effective July 1, 2009, KIPP STRIVIL Academy opened up starting with the
fifth grade. Lffectve July 1, 2010, KIPP Vision Academy opened up starting with the fifth grade.

KIPP South Fulton Academy, Inc. is a separate associated entity, also a KIPP chartes public
middle school. The Organization provides academic and management services to KIPP South
Fulton Academy.

The financial statements presented include the pre-merger activity for KIPP WAYS
Academy and KIPP STRIVIE Academy for the six months ending December 31, 2008 as well as the
post-merger actvity for the six months ending June 30, 2009,

During the years ended Junie 30, 2010 and 2009, the shared services division of KIPP Metro
Atlanta Collaborative charged KIPP South Tulton Academy, Inc. and KIPP WAYS Academy 2
fixed academic and management services fee for shared services provided by the Organization.

Upon the merger, labilites in the amount of $16,709 were transferred from KIPP WAYS
Academy, Inc. o KIPP Mewo Adanta Collaborative. ‘The Habilites represent accrued leave for

employees that transferred from KIPP WAYS Academy to KIiPP Metro Atdanta Collaborative.

4
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated statement of financial position and starement of actvitics includes a
column for intee-division eliminations. ‘These eliminatons include inter-division loans, pass

through grants and academic and management services income.

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in conformity with accounting principles gencrally accepted in the United States of
America. In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and revenue and expenses for the year. Actual results could differ significantly from

those estimates.

The Organization has implemented the provisions of SIKAS No. 117, Fivancial Statenenty of
Not-for-Profit Organizations, as promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board.  Under
SFAS No. 117, the Organization is required to report informaton regarding its financial position
and activities according to three classes of per assets: unrestricted, temporarily restricted or
nermanently resuicted based on stipulations made by the donor.

The Organization has also implemented Swatement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SIAS) No. 110, Acconnting for Comtrebuiions Made, as promulgated by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board. In accordance with SFAS No. 116, unconditional promiscs to give and
contributions received are recorded as unresericred, temporarily restricted, or permanently resericted
support depending on the existence or nature of donor restrictions that limit the use of the donated
assets. Accordingly, the Organization reports gifts of cash and other asscrs as restricted support if
they are received with donor stupulations that limit the use of the donated assets.

When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restrictions are accomplished, temporarily restricted net assers are reclassified to untestricted net
assets and reported in the statements of activitics as net asscrs released from restrictions.  All
contribunons and vnconditional promises to give which do nor have donor restrictions as to
purpose or dme are classified as unrestricted contributions. When temporatily restricred pledges are
received and the restrictions are met in the same accounting period, they are reported as
unrestricted support.

(92
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

The Organization records gifts of land, buildings, and cquipment as unrestricted support
unless donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived asscts
with restrictions thar specify how the asscts are to be used, as well as gifts of cash or other assets
thar must be used to acquire long-lived assets, are reported as restricred support. Absent donor
stipulations regarding how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, the Organization
repotts expirations of donor restictions when the donated long-lived assets are placed in service.

Land held for sale, other asscts and marketable secutities acquired by gift are recorded at
their fair market value on the date of receipt. No amounts have been reflected in the financial
statements for donated services; however, a substantial number of volunteers have donated
significant amounts of their time to the Organization’s programs and supportng services. I
material donated services received cither created or enhanced non-financial assets or required
specialized skills which would need to be purchased if not donated, the value of those donated
services would be recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 116,

Lffectve January 1, 2009, the Organizavon adopted the recognition requirements for
uncertain income tax positions as required by generally accepted accounting principles, with ne
cumulative ctfect adjustment required. Income tax benefits are recognized fot income tax positions
taken or expected to be taken in a return, only when it is determined that the income tax position
will more-likely-than-not be sustained upon examination by taxing authoritics. 'The Organization
has analyzed tax positons wken for filing with the Internal Revenue Scervice and all stare
jurisdictions where it operates. The Organization believes that income tax filing positons will be
sustained upon examination and does not anucipate any adjustments that would result in a marerial
adverse affect on the Organization's financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
Accordingly, the Organization has not recorded any reserves, or related accruals for interest and
penalties for uncertain income tax positons at June 30, 2010. The Organization is subject to routine
audits by taxing jurisdictions; however, there are currently no audits for any tax periods in progress.

The Organization is subject to routine audits by raxing jurisdictions; however, there are
currently no audits for any tax pesiods in progress. The Organization believes it is no longer subject

to income tax examinatons for vears prior to the vear ended June 30, 2007,

For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Organization considers all checking and moncey
market accounts to be cash equivalents.

The Organization’s bank accounts were placed in Private Advisory accounts which insure
the entire balance in the account.

G
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Grants and accounts receivable are stated at face value with no allowance for doubtful
accounts. An allowance for doubtful accounts is not considered necessary since all receivables are

considered collecuble.

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation is
being provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assers.
The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and equipment in
excess of $1,000.

3. GRANTS RECEIVABLE

The Qrganization has recorded grants receivable of $6,989,937 and $1,799,774 as of June 30,
2010 and 2009.

2010 2009
Capital campaign S 2,880,000 3 3,200
Opesations - time restricted 3,760,000 1,735,000
Teacher recruitmer/ support 150,000 -
Title 1 199,937 61,574

6,989,937 1,799,774
Less long-term (2,283,333} (1,000,000;
Current S 4,700,604 § 799,774

7
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

4, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

e i » 30 2010 and 200
The following is « summary of propesty and equipment at cost as of June 30, 2010 and 2009

9;

2010 KPP
Useful Mertro KPP KIPP KIPP

Lives Atdanta STRIVIE Vision WAYS Total
Computers 5 $ 10,093 § 12,492 5 2,044 3 02,028 § 116,657
Leaschold Improvements  10-15 - 721,515 1,563,335 2,284 850
Construction in progress - 290,957 - 290,957
Furniture 5 8,055 15,538 2,175 1,325 27,693
Vehicle 5 - 3,830 15,560 19,390
Assels Not i service 14,154 8,000 4,242 - 26,396
32,002 1,052,332 8,461 1,672,248 2,765,943
Less accumulated depreciaton {8,742) (29,946) (422 (461,599 (500,709

Property and equipment, net

2009

Lives

Computers

Leasehold Improvements
Construction in progress
Furniture

Vehicle

Assets not placed in service

Less accumulated depreciaton

Property and equipment, net

$ 24160 $1,022386 S 8,039 $ 1,210,649 § 272065234

10-15

Leoin

[<KIPP
NMerro KIPP KPP IKIPP
Atlanta SIRIVE  Vision WAYS L'otal
S 10,093 3 5005 % - 586,150 3 101,254
- - 1,553,521 1,553,521
- 311,063 311,063
7,630 ; : 7,630
: 15,560 15,560
17,723 316,068 . 1,655,237 1,089,028
(5,095) (501) : (334,711) (340,307
S 12,028 $315567 S - 51.320.526 $1.,648,721

Depreciation expense for the vear ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was $160,402 and

$123,285.
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

5. PASS THROUGH GRANTS PAYABLE AND EXPENSE

The Organizaton receives grants from foundations on behalf of KIPP WAYS Academy,
KIPP Vision Academy, and KIPP South Fulton Academy, Inc. During the years ended fune 30,
2010 and 2009, the Organization received grants that were to be passed through to the schools in
the amount of $1,524,581 and $1,273,320 respectively. As of June 30, 2009, the Organization held
$200,000 in pass through grants that were payable to KIPP South IFulton Academy, Inc.

6. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporatily resticted net assets are comprised of funds the Organization has received
subject to donor-imposed restrictions consisting of the following at June 30, 2010 and 2009:

KIrr
2010 Metro KIPP KIPP
Atlanta STRIVIE WAYS Total
Capital campaign 8 3,483,919 % - ) - $ 3,483,919
Tune restrictions 3,595,000 30,000 5,000 3,630,000
Academic 150,000 - - 150,000
Total § 7228919 % 30,000 $ 5,000 8 7,263,919
KPP
2009 Metro KIPP KIPrp
Atlanta STRIVE WAYS Total
Capiral campaign $ 503,200 S 468,999 8§ - s 972,199
Time restrictions 1,235,000 - -7 ,235,000
Academic i 246,289 - 246,280
Total S 1,738,200 $ 715,288 S ~ 0§ 2,453,488

G

54



KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

6. COMMITMENTS

The Organization leased office space for $3,498 per month under a lease that expired in June
2010. Total rent expense under this lease for the vears ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was $41,976
and $41,970 respecrively.

The Organization also leases schoot space for KIPP STRIVID Academy, Inc. charter school
unider a lease that expires in May 2014, There are no monthly lease payments; however, the School
must pay all operating expenses. The Organization has the ability to extend the lease up to ten
more years. Subsequent to vear end, the Organization filed a letter of intent to purchase the building
for $600,000 and the owners have verbally agreed.

The Organizaton also leases school space for IKIPP WAYS Academy charter school under a
lease that expires in 2015, Total rent expense under this lease was $22,245 for 2010 and $22,069 for
2009, The following summanzed the future minimum lease payments required under the non-
cancelable lease for the year ended June 30:

2011 $ 23,357
2012 24,525
2013 25,751
2014 27,039
2015 28,391
Thereafrer 14,905

Total Minimum Future Renrals § 143,968

The Organization has a verbal commimment from Atlanta Public Schools to lease school
space for KIPP Vision Academy which opened up oo July 1, 2010 and to lease the building where
the Organization’s offices are now locate.  Both leases are expected o have no monthly lease
payments; however KIPP Vision Academy and the Organization must pay all operating CXI}C!;ISCS.

The Organization received approval from Atanta Public Schools 1o open a KIPP high
school which will open in July 2011,

The Organization entered into a school bus mransportation service agreement in July 2009

through June 30, 2014, The daily rate is $220 with additional charges being incurred for time and
distance overages.
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

7.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - DUE TO/FROM INTER-DIVISION
AND AFFILIATES

KIPP Metro Adanta Collaborative shared services division, KIPP WAYS Academy, KIPP

STRIVE Academy, KIPP Vision Academy KIPP South Fulton Academy, Inc. incur expenses on
behalf of each other. Due to/ from inter-division and due to/ from affiliates are paid off monthiy.

8,  REISSUANCE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements have been reissued to propetly reflect $1,500,000 of temporarily
restricted net assers that were inadvertently released from restrictions for the year ended June 30,

2010. The temporatily restricted conttibution of $1,500,000 is restricted for capital purposes.
Tiootnote 6 has been updated to properly reflect the temporarily restricted assets. '

il
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

9, FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The cost of providing the various programs and other activities are summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
various programs and supporting services benefited. The following are expenses incurred during

the year ended June 30, 2010

Payroll expenses

Payrolt taxes and bencefits

Direct student expenses

Board and community development
Common area furniture and signage
Depreciation

Development and marketing
Fiquipment rental

Insurance

License fee

Occupancy

Office and computer supplics
Other general expenses

Pass through grants

Postage

Printing

Professional fees

Reparr and mamrtenance

Staff development and recruitment
Staff teavet

Support services

Telephone

Uttlities

Toral

Propgram

General and

Administrative Fundraising Total

$ 3,090,238
469,740
1,031,550

755
125,066

16,341
51,228
39,215
50,414
26,979
30,208
1,003,413
2,497
1,180
11,787
112,653
58,977

800
31,695
61,635

$ 430,499 S 98,899 $ 3,619,636

4,482 14,658 548,880
1,075 ; 1,032,625
10 10

. . 755
35,336 ' 160,402
- 38,021 38,021
4,085 ; 20,426
23,345 - 74,573
: ; 39,215
12,603 . 63,017
11,862 . 38,841
9,562 2 39,772
. 1,003,413

726 137 3,360
318 100 1,595

29 600 - 41,387
30,312 . 142,965
35,763 236 94,976
200 . 1,000
8,068 ; 39,763
15,409 - 77044

S 6,216,371

$ 713242 % 152,063 S 7,081,676

Contnued
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

9., FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES - Continued

The cost of providing the various programs and other acuvities are summarized on a functional

basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been altocated among the
various programs and supporting services benefired. The following are expenses incurted during

the vear ended June 30, 2009:

Payroll expenses

Payroll taxes and benefits

Direct student expenses

Common area furniture and signage
Depreciation

Development and marketing
Lquipment rental

Insurance

License fee

Occupancy

Office and computer supplies
Orther general expenses

Postage

Printing

Professional fees

Repair and maatenance

staff developoment and recruitment
Sraff travel

Telephone

Urilities

T'otal

Proeram

General and
Administrative

Fundrasing Total

$ 2,609,360
391,343
779,953

95,481

12,216
41,110
59 484
54,480
13,594
22,467

2,195

5,034

6,084
80,201
68,579

8,133
20,122
46,052

$ 352,281
55 558

1,384

27 804

4,054
16,894

13,623
4282
5,636

586
1,342

29,003

20,050

26,628
2,033
6,182

11,513

$

90,255 § 3,051,896
16,356 463,257
] 779,953

; 1,384

i 123,285
26,200 26,200
. 16,270

. 58,004

. 50 484

. 68,112

. 17.876

: 28,103
147 2,928
336 6,712
35,087

100,251

. 95,207
10,166

26,304

57,565

§ 4,315,807

E 575,853

S

133,294 S 5,028,044

13
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McKelvey & Russell, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

1o The Board of Direcrots
IKIPP Mereo Adanta Collaborative

We have audited the financial starements of KIPP Mewo Atanta Collaborative, Inc.
as of and for the vears ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, and have issued our separate report
thereon dated January 15, 2011, The audits were made for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying supplemental
consolidating  statements of financial position, activities and cash flows, comparatve
statements of financial position and activitics, and fund level activities balance sheet and
income statement are presented [or purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal
awards and findings and questioned costs are presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budger Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit QOrganizations.” Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the 2010 and 2009 financial statements and, in
our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation 1o these financial starements
taken as a whole.

(Y\CMWWM

Cerified Pablic Accountants

January 15, 2011

Post Otfice Boy 1026
Devutar, Georgiu 300311026
Plione: (404 3780077
Pans (4041 3780730
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KIPP WEST ATLANTA YOUNG SCHOLARS ACADEMY

SUPPLEMENTAL FUND LEVEL - BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2010

ASSTILS
Cash and cash equivalents S 1,033,837
Due from other governments 165,749
Due from other organizations 7,820
Total Assets $§ 1,207,406

LIABILUVITES AND FUND BALANCLS

Accrued habiliges 3 122,620
Total Liabilities 122,020

FUND BALANCES
Untrestricted 1,084,786
Restricted for Capital Prowects -

Total Fund Balances _ 1,084,786

Total Liabilides and Fund Balances § 1,207,406

L

-~
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KIPP WEST ATLANTA YOUNG SCHOLARS ACADEMY

SUPPLEMENTAL FUND LEVEL - ACTIVITIES INCOME STA_TEMEN’I‘
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 '

Revenues:
Federal Funds:
State Apportionments/Title 1 funding g 442 979
stare Funds:
Atlanta Public School district funding 3,320,019
Orther Local Funds:
Foundation 164,000
Conuributions 69,137
studear meal income 6,599
[nterest incorme 4,148
Orther revenue 1989
Total Revenues 4027378

Expenditures:

Instruction 3,535,802
General administration 229973
Other expenses 22 517
Acquisition of capital assets 17,011

Interest payments -
Principal payments -

Total Expenditures 3,805,303
Excess of revenue over expenditares 222,075
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 874,374
Prior period adjustment - accounts receivable {11,663}
FFund Balances, Fnd of Year $ 1,084,780



KIPP STRIVE ACADEMY

SUPPLEMENTAL FUND LEVEL - BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2010

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other governments
Due from othet m‘ganizatjons

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCIS

Accrued labilities and unearned revenue
T'otal Tiabilities
FUND BALANCES
Unrestricted
Restricted for Capital Projects

Towal [und Balances

‘Total Liahilities and Fund Balances

9

§359,120
37,738
273,168

668,026

S 37,988

37,988

630,038
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KIPP STRIVE ACADEMY

SUPPLEMENTAL FUND LEVEL - ACTIVITIES INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Revenues:

Federal Funds:

State Apportionments/Title I funding

State Funds:

Arlanta Public School disuricr funding

Orther Local Funds:
Foundation
Conttibutions
Student meal income
Interest income
Other revenue

Total Revenues

Lspenditures:

Instruction

General administration
Other expenses

Acquisiton of capital assets
Interest payments

Principal payments

Total Expenditures

fixcess of expenditures over revenue
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, Fnd of Year

369,607
972,804

401,168
39,098
0,454
2,291
6,139

1,800,501

954,935
163,452
24,222

Ay

736,264

1,878,673

(78,312)

708,350

2

630,038
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Section 1 — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Naone
Financial Staremenis Yes No  Reported
Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporang:
Material weakness{es) indentifiedr X
Reportable condition(s) identified that are not considered to be
material weakness{es)? X
Noncompliance material to financial staternents notedr X
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Marterial weakness(es) indenufied? N
Reportable condition(s) ideatified that are not considered to be
matetial weakness(es)? X
‘Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with scction 510{2) of Circular A-1337 X
10.555 LS. Depastment of Agriculture - National School Lunch Program
84.01 U.S. Department of Education - litle 1 Grants to Local LEducational
Agencies
84.282 LS. Department of Education - Charter Schools

11
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KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC,

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Dollar threshold used to distinguish berween type A and

type B programs: S300,000
Yes  No
Auditee qualified as low-risk anditee? X

Section 11 — Financial Statement Findings

This section identifics the reportable conditions, marerial weaknesses, and instances of
noncompliance related to the financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance
with paragraphs 5.18 through 5.20 of Gomernment ~Anditing Standards. Auditors should refer 1o those
patagraphs, as well as the reports content section of Chapter 7 of Gorernment Auditing Standards, for
additional guidance on preparing this section of the schedule.

‘There were no matters to repott,
Section T11 = Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the audit findings required to be reported by Section 510(a) of Circular
A-133 (for example, repartable conditions, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance,
including questioned costs).

There were no matters to report.

Section 1V - Prior Audit Findings

None,
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KIPP METROATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2010

Faderal Gramt
CIFDA Award Revenue Grant
Number Amount Received Lxpendirures
LEs. Department of Agnculiure:
Nanonal School Lanch Prograns
KIPP WAYS Academy 10555 8§ 156,043 % 156,03 $ 136,043
INIPP STRIVE Acadeny 13,533 44,182 44,633 48,182
sub-total 200,670 204,225

LLS, Department of Tducauon:

Charter Schools:

KIPP STRIVE Academy 84.282 200,000 200,300 196,972
Tide 1 Grants to Local Educanional Agences
KIPP WAYS Academy 401 132,425 - 128,677
KIPP STRIVE Academy £84.01 40 470 - 24,400
Title } Grants to Local Educatonal Agencies ARRA
KIPP WAYS Academy 84.01 37,077 - 32,072
KIPP STRIVE Academy 84.01 14,075 - 9,789
Sub-torml 200,000 396,910
Toral S 100,676 5 601,135

Pass through grants
"+ Tested as major program



KIPP METRO ATLANTA COLLABORATIVE, INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant acuvity
of KIPP Metro Atlanm Collaboratve, Inc. and is presented on GAAP. The informanon in this

schedule is presented in accordance with the requiremenrs of OMB Circular A-133, Awxdits of

States, 1ocal Governments, and Now-Profit Organizutions. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial
statements.
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McKelvey & Russell, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

T'o the Boatd of Directors
KIPP Metro Atanta Collaborative, Inc.:

We have audited the financial statements of KIPP Merro Atdanta Collaboratve, Inc. as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our repost thereon dated January 15,
2011, We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained i
Government Anditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planaing and performing our audit, we considered KIPP Metro  Adanta
Collaboradve, Inc’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the finuncial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the cffectiveness of KIPP Metro
Atlanm Collaborative Ine.’s internal control over financial reporting,  Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of KIPP Metro Atlanta Collabosative, Inc.’s internal
control over financial reporting,

A deficiency in internal controf exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing  their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a tmely basis. A waterial
weakness 1s a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal contrel such that there s a
reasonable possibility that 2 material misstatement of the endey’s financial statements will not
be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideradon of internal congrol over financial reporting was for the Jimited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this scction and was not designed to identfy all
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be defliciencies, significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identdfy any deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that we consider to be marerial weaknesses, as defined above.

Post Oee Box 1026
Decatur, Gueorga ST 1026
Phoane: (404 3786077
Faxs cHLE ATR-UTAG

74




Compliance and Qther Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether KIPP Metro Atlanta
Collaborative, Inc.’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with cerrain provisions of laws, regulatons, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which couid have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other marters that are required to be repotted under Gorerument Awditing
Standards.,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Finance Committee,
Board of Directors, management and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties,

January 15, 2011 m C/{C@&}@ﬁd Ml C(/C

Certified Public Accountants
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McKelvey & Russell, LLC

Certitied Public Accountants

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Directors
KIPP Metro Atlanta Collaborauve, Inc.

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of KIPP Metro Atanta Collaborative, [ne. (a nonprofit
organization) with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S, Office of
Management and Budger (OMB) Ciranlar /1133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable o
cach of its major federal programs for the vear ended June 30, 2010, KIPP Metro Adanta
Collaborative, Inc’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of audiror’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questoned costs. Compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulatons, coniracts, and grants applicable to each of its
major federal programs is the responsibility of KIPP Metro Atlanta Collaborative, Inc’s
management. Qur tesponsibility is 1o express an opinion on KIPP Metro  Adanta
Collaborative, Inc.’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Gorermment Anditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and OMB  Circular A-133, Awdits of States. Tocal Governments, and  Now-Profit
Organzzations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the ypes of
compliance requirements refecred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
KPP Metro Atlanta Collaborative, Inc’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audic provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audic does not
provide a legal determination of KIPP Metro Adanta Collaborative, Inc’s compliance with
those requircments.

In our opinion, KIPP Mcrro Atanta Collaborasmve, Inc. complied, in all material respects,
wirth the requirements referred 1o above that asre applicable to cach of its major ftederal
proggams for the year ended June 30, 2010,

Post Oftice Bos 1826
Decatar, Georgia 303 E- MG
Plhone: R4 3786077
Fas: CHM 3789730
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Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of KIPP Metro Atlanta Collaborative, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing
our audit, we considered KIPP Metro Atlanta Collaborative, Inc’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on compliance and to test and seport on internal control over compliance in
nccordance with OMDB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectivencss of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the ¢ffectiveness of KIPP Mewo Adanta Collaborative, Inc’s internal control
over comphance.

N deficiency in internal contral over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
petforming their assigned functions, to prevent, of detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness i
internal control over compliauice is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detecred
and corrected, on a tmely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limired purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed 10 identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of

Ditcctors, others within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

(N Aolvey (nal, UL

Certified Public Accountants

January 15, 2011
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KIPP SOUTH FULTON
ACADEMY, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009
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KIPP SOUTH FULTON ACADEMY, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Statements of inancial Position
Statements of Activities
Statements of Cash Ilows

Notes to Financial Statements
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McKelvey & Russell, LLC

Certificd Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Boatd of Directors
KIPP South Fulton Academy, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial positdon of KIPP South Fulon
Academy, Inc. (a nonprofit corporation) as of June 30, 2010, and the related statements of activiries
and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements ate the responsibility of KIPP
South Fulton Academy, Inc.’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. The financial statements of KIPP South Fulton Academy,
Inc. as of June 30, 2009 were audited by other auditors. Those auditors expressed an unqualified
opinien on those financial statements in their report dated September 306, 2009,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit o obrain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matetial
respects, the financial positon of KIPP South ulton Academy, Inc. as of june 30, 2010, and the
changes in its net assets and cash flows for the vear then ended in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Mm *Russell, L

Certified Public Accountants

September 28, 2010

Pot Ofce oy 1020
Deciur, Georgha 3051 1026
Pheme . tbbb 378 9077

I, 10 27K A0
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KIPP SOUTH FULTON ACADEMY, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

2010 2009
CURRENT ASSHTS:
Cash in banks k) 623,417 288,350
Grants/ fees receivable 191,651 211,983
Prepaid expenses 8,394 19,628
Total Cuttent Assets 823 402 519,961
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT at remaining cost 2,144,732 1,943,631
Total Assets 3 2,968,194 2,463,592
LIABILITIES AND NIVT ASSIEZTS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilivies 5 102,470 179,529
Current portion of long-term debt 315,500 47,899
Taotal Current Liabilities 417,970 227,428
LONG-TERM DERT 1,343,531 1,628,897
Toral Liabilitics 1,761,501 1,856,328
NIET ASSETS:
Unrestricted 1,206,693 007,267
Temporarily restricted - -
Total Net Assers 1,206,693 607,267
Toral Liabilities and Net Assets § 2,908,194 2,463,592

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financtal statements.

1
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KIPP SOUTH FULTON ACADEMY, INC

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

UNRESTRICTED NI ASSETS: 2010 2009
REVTINUL AND SUPPORT:
Government grants g 10971 S 528,142
Fulton County districr funding 2639375 2500182
Foundation grants 524,000 388,830
Congributions and grants 21,5806 -
Student fees 66,228 61,011
Interest income 2862 24147
Orther revenue . 1,581
Net assers released from restrictions J48. 280 201,845
Towal Revenue and Support 4,122 302 3,867,008
ENPLNSES:
Program services 3,185,509 3,316,306
Management and general 322,052 242812
lundraising 14715 54,307
Toral Expenses 3,522,876 3,013,425
Increase it Unrestricred Net Assers 599 420 253,583
TEMPORARILY RESTRICTTID NITT ASKITS:
Cirants and contribunons 448,280 75,500
Netassers released from restictons (48,2805 (291,845;
Increase {Decrease) in Temporanly Restricted Net Assets {216,345)
CHANGE IN NS ASSELS 509,426 37,258
NI ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YIEAR 6uT267 571,773
PRIOR PERIOD ADFUSTNENT . 3 (1,744
INETTASSETS AT END OF YFAR S OL206,693 0§ 60720

The zecompanying notes are an incegral part of these financial statements.

o]
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KIPP SOUTH FULTON ACADEMY, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FL.OWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

2010 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERNTING ACTINVETTES:
CHANGE IN NET ASSIES § 599426 S 37,238
ADJUSTNENT TO RECONCILE CHANGIIN N
ASSETS TO NI CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITLIES:
Deprecation 145,255 P34, 243
Change ur
Grants/fees recenvable 20,352 SLYB2;
Prepad asset 11,235 (10,941
Accounts pavable and accrued habilites (77059 (99,324
Prior petiod adjustment . (1,744
Toml Adjustments 99,763 (59,745}
Net Cash Provided By (Used Iny Operating Activines 699,189 {22,510
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and cquipment L {340,35063 {69, 188)
Net Cash Used In Investing Acuviies (340,350) {GY,188)
CASH PLOW FROM FINANCING ACTINT N
Repavment of loan (17,7065} (46,5060
Net Cash Provided By (Uised In) Iinancing Actvites (17,705) {40,560)
NETINCREASLE (DECREEASLEY IN CASH AND CASH
EOUIVALENTS 335,008 (138,26:4)
CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 288350 420,614
CASH AND CASH BEQUINVALENTS, FND O YLAR S 623418 $ 288,350
SUPPLEEMENTAL DISCLOSURE O CASH TLOW INTTORMATION:
[nrerest paid S 100,262 S 100514

The accompanying noles are an integgal part of these fnancial statements.

o
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KIPP SQUTH FULTON ACADEMY, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

1, ORGANIZATION

KIPP South Fulton Academy, Inc. (the School) operates as a public charrer middle school
under the laws of the state of Georgia in the city of Atlanta. The School commenced its first year of
teaching in the 2003/2004 academic school vear. The school’s mission is to create an atmosphere in
which educationally underserved students develop knowledge, skills, physical fitness, and characrer,
thereby creating opportunities for success and leadership in top quality high schools, colleges, and in
the competitive world beyond. The current school enrollment is approximately 300 students n
grades 5 through 8. The School is a member of the Knowledge is Power Program (KKIPP), which is
a national not-for-profit organization whose mission is to train and support educational leaders who
are opening high-performing public middle schools across the country. The main operating
philosophy of the KIPP organization and its members is enveloped in five operating principles or
“pillars” which are: 1) High Expectations, 2) Choice and Commitment, 3) More lime, 4) Power to
Lead and 5} Focus on Results,

The School formed as a non-profit corporation under the laws of the state of Georgia in
October 2002 and is exempt from federal income taxes under the provision of Section 501(c) (3} of
the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, the School is not required to pay federal taxes on income,
and contributions to the School qualify for the charitable contributions deduction to the extent
provided by Section 170 of the Internal Revenue Code.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the School have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Habilities at the date of the financial
statements, and revenue and expenses for the year.  Actual results could differ significanty from
those estimates.

‘The School has adopted Statemnent of Financial Accounting Standards No 117 in reporting
its activites. ‘This statement establishes standards for reportng cerrain basic information in the
financial statements applicable to not-for-profit organizations. These standards require the School
to report information regarding its financial position and activities according 1o three classes of ner
assets: untestricted, remporarily restricted or permanently restricted based on stipulations made by
the donor.
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KIPP SOUTH FULTON ACADEMY, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Accordingly, the school reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donared assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restrictions is accomplished,
remporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Al contributions and unconditional
promises to give which do not have donos restrictions as to purpose or time are classified as
unrestricted contributions.

The School records gifts of land, buildings, and equipment as unrestricted support unless
explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used.  Gifts of long-lived assets
with explicit restrictions that specify how the assers are to be used, as well as gifts of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived asscts, are reported as restricted support. Absent
explicit donor stdpulations regarding how long those long-lived assets must be mainrained, the
School reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are
placed in service.

Land held for sale, other asscts and matketable securides acquired by gift are recorded at
their fair marker value on the date of receipt. No amounts have been reflected in the financial
statements for donated services; however, a substantial number of volunteers have donated
significant amounts of their time to the School’s programs and supporting services.  If marerial
donated services received either created or enhanced non-financial assets or required specialized
skills which would need to be purchased if not donated, the value of those donated services would
be recorded in accordance with SITAS No. 116.

Effective January 1, 2009, the Orpanization adopted the recognition requirements for
uncertain income tax positions as required by generally accepted accounting principles, with no
cumulative effect adjustment required. Income tax benefits are recognized for income fax positions
taken ot expected to be taken in a return, only when it is determined that the income tax position
will more-likely-than-not be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. The Organization
has analyzed tax positdons taken for filing with the Internal Revenue Service and all state
jurisdictions where it operates. The Organization believes that income tax filing positions will be
sustained upon examinadon and does not anticipate any adjustments that would result 1n a material
adverse affect on the Organizadon's financial conditdon, results of operations or cash flows.
Accordingly, the Organization has not recorded any reserves, or related accruals for interest and
penalties for uncertain income tax positions at June 30, 2010, The Organization is subject to routine
audits by taxing jurisdictions; however, there are currently no audits for any tax periods in progress.

85



KIPP SQUTH FULTON ACADEMY, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

The Organization s subject to routine audits by raxing junisdictions; however, there are
cugrently no audits for any tax periods in progress. The Organization believes it is no longer subject
to income tax examinations for years priog to the year ended June 30, 2007,

The Organization considers cash and cash equivalents and other demand deposits to be cash
equivalents, as well as highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity date of three months or
less to be cash equivalent

The Organization’s bank accounts were placed in Private Advisory accounts which insure the
entire balance in the account.

Grants and accounts receivable are stated at face value with no allowance for doubtful
accounts. An allowance for doubtful accounts 1s not considered necessary since all receivables are
considered collectible.

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation 1s
being provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets
ranging from five to fifteen years straight-line method. The School capitalizes all expenditures for
property and equipment in excess of $1,000. Capital cxpenditures made under the terms of a federal
contract are expensed.

Adverasing and development costs ase expensed as incurred.
Interest costs are charged w operations as incurred.

Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 28, 2010, which is the date the
financial statements were avatiable to be issued.

For the fiscal vears ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, the School received approximately 64%
and 67%, respectively, of its annual revenue from the Fulton County Board of Iiducation in the

form of a yearly grant which is paid ro the School in monthly installments.

0
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KIPP SOUTH FULTON ACADEMY, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The following is a summary of property and equipment at cost as of June 30, 2010 and 2009

2010 2009

Building and improvements $ 2,223887 % 1,964,518
Land 240,000 240,000
Computer equipment 122924 125,390
Furniture 7,548 7,548
Assets not placed in service 9,228 -
Construction In progress 168,150 88,179

2,771,741 2,425,632
Accumulated depreciation (627,009} (482,001)
Property and equipment, net § 2,144732  § 1943631

Depreciation expense for the vear ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was $144,255 and $134,243.
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KIPP SOUTH FULTON ACADEMY, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2609

4. NOTES PAYABLE

The following is a summary of the notes payable incurred by the School as of June 30, 2010
and 2009:

2010 2009

Note payable with insurance company, due in monthly

instaliments of 8,183 through July 2020 at 6%

interest. A balloon payment is due in July 2020, The

note 1s secured by the real property. 5 1,367,880 $ 1,390,834
Note payable with seller, interest only at 7% with

payments of $1,458.34 due monthly through April

2012 with a balloon payment due in May 2012, The

note is unsecured. 195,151 189,962
Note payable with seller, interest only at 7% with

payments of $560.00 due monthly through April

2012 with a balloon payment due in May 2012. 'The

note 18 unsecured. 96,000 96,000

1,659,031 1,676,796

Less amount included in curtent liabilides (315,500) (47,899)
Long-term debt $ 1,343,531 5 1,628,897

Aggregate maturitics of these loans at June 30 are as follows:

2011 5 315,500
2012 25,851
2013 27,445
2014 29,138
2015 30,935
Thereafter 1,230,162
Total § 1,659,031

The Organization paid off the two notes payable with seller in September 2010; therefore
they arc included in current liabilites.
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KIPP SOUTH FULTON ACADEMY, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

5. NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Net assets in the amount of $448 280 and $291.845 were released from donor restrictions
during the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 by incurring expenses related to varlous academic
programs satisfying the donor restrictions.

6. RETIREMENT PLAN

The School participates in the Teachers Retirement System of Georgia (TRS), a public
retirement  system  that  provides retirement bencfits o Georgia  public school  teachers.
Contributions to I'RS during the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 were $141,801 and $158,735
respectively.

9
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KIPP SOUTH FULTON ACADEMY, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

7. FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The cost of providing the vatious programs and other activities are summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activides  accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among
the various programs and supporting services benefited.  The following are expenses incurred
during the vear ended June 30, 2010.

Program General and
Serviees Admintstrative . Fundraising  Total

Salarics $ 1,698,110 § 186,926 % 9,362 § 1,894,398
Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 256,905 28 280 1,416 286,601

T'otal salaries and benefits 1,855,015 215,206 10,778 2,180,999
Direct student expenses 632,159 - - 632,159
Board development/marketing 2,718 2,718 3,551 8,087
Depreciation 116,204 29,051 - 145,255
Equipment rental 0,467 2,360 - 11,6833
Insuratice 32,214 $,053 - 40,267
Interest expense 85,758 21,439 - 107,197
KIPP MAC contribution 130,129 - - 130,129
License fee 20,394 - - 26,394
Miscellaneous 7,914 1,982 - 0,896
Office and computer supplies 12,1606 3,041 - 15,207
Postage 1,575 420 105 2,100
Printing 4.217 1,124 281 5,622
Professional fees 6,488 1,622 - 8,110
Repair and maintenance 44,497 11,124 - 55,621
Staff recruitment/development 36,751 4,045 - 40,796
Telephone 0,168 1,542 - 7,710
Utilities 75,675 18,919 - 94,594

Total Expenses g 3185509 § 322,652 14,715 § 3,322.870

10
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KIPP SOUTH FULTON ACADEMY, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010 and 2009

7. FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES - Continued

The cost of providing the vatious programs and other activities are summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activities.  Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among
the various programs and supporting services benefited. ‘The following are expenses incurred during
the year ended June 30, 2009.

Program General and
Services Administrative  Fundtaising Total

Salaties s 1,778101 § 116,616 § 48,878 § 1,943,595
Fringe benefirs and payrol! taxes 270,952 17,295 - 288,247

Total salarics and benefits 2,049,053 133,911 48,878 2,231,842
Direct student cxpenses 699,585 - - 699,585
Board development/marketing 2,194 2,193 5,125 9512
Depreciation 107,394 26,849 134,243
Equipment rental 26,207 6,551 - 32,758
Grant refund 00,065 - - 90065
Insurance 20,368 5,092 - 25,460
Interest expense 80,412 20,103 - 100,515
IKTPP MAC contribution 48,878 - - 48,878
License fee 20,721 5,180 - 25,901
Miscellaneous 17,251 4313 - 21,564
Office and compurter supplies 14,415 3,604 - 18,019
Postage 1,621 432 108 2,101
Printing 2,934 782 1G4 3,912
Professional fees 6,624 1,656 . 8,280
Repair and maintenance 23,604 5,901 - 29,505
Staff secruitment/ development 37,016 9,254 - 46,270
Telephone 7,250 1,813 - 9,063
Utilities 60,714 15,178 - 75,892

Total Expenses § 3,316,306 % 242,812 § 54,307 $ 3,613,425
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KIPP FRAMEWORK FOR
EXCELLENT TEACHING

SELF AND
OTHERS

CULTURE

£

\ G

There is a wealth of knowledge about what works in great classrooms. There are inspiring frameworks—Saphier’s
pyramid to Lemov’s taxonomy, Teach For America’s rubric, Hunter’s lesson plan—that describe great teaching. We
draw from all of these amazing resources to develop this vision. We believe that excellent teaching at KIPP means...

A commitment to long-term transformative outcomes for kids. We know the ultimate measure of our
success is the lives our kids are able to lead.

« Teaching is not an individual endeavor. We teach as part of a team. Recognizing our collective effort, a
student’s family must also teach our kids as well.

» Joy. We are lucky enough to do the hardest, most fun work imaginable. People should have their noses
pressed up against the glass, begging for our jobs. Our students and their parents should know that we
absolutely love what we do. More important, our students should revel in the joy of learning, struggling,
and growing every day.
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KIPP FRAMEWORK FOR
EXCELLENT TEACHING

AT THE CENTER OF OUR WORK IS:

Excellent teaching means students learn, grow, and achieve transformative life outcomes.

THE FOUR ELEMENTS OF EXCELLENT TEACHING ARE LINKED THROUGH OUR:

Beliefs and Character

An excellent KIPP teacher is committed to KIPP’s mission. She constantly pursues becoming a better person, just as she
supports students in this pursuit. She understands that her beliefs and character affect who she is, her impact on and

relationships with others, her classroom environment, how she teaches, and what she knows.

THE FOUR ELEMENTS OF EXCELLENT TEACHING ARE:

Self and Others
Excellent teaching requires understanding of oneself, one’s connection to others, and a growth
mindset that allows the teacher to take ownership for the success of all KIPPsters.

Classroom Culture

In an excellent classroom culture, the teacher focuses on countless tangible and intangible
details in the space to create an environment where students are joyfully engaged, meaningfully
on-task, and feel ownership for their individual and collective successes in college and in life.

The Teaching Cycls

Excellent teaching means planning and executing rigorous, engaging lessons that fit into a
logical scope and sequence, as well as using student data to assess mastery of objectives and
movement toward big goals for student achievement and growth. Excellent teaching requires a
1/12 mindset, recognizing that even the tiniest details can dramatically impact student mastery.

ladoe

Teaching is an art and science. As the artists and scientists, we are responsible for building our
understanding of child development, pedagogy, and content. We are responsible for knowing
what we are teaching, how it fits in a PreK-16 continuum, and who we are teaching it to.
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BELIEFS AND CHARACTER

Beliefs and Character: An excellent KIPP teacher is committed to KIPP’s mission. She constantly pursues
becoming a better person, just as she supports students in this pursuit. She understands that her beliefs
and character affect who she is, her impact on and relationships with others, her classroom environment,
how she teaches, and what she knows.

BELIEFS | believe that...

A. With effort and appropriate strategies, all children have what it takes to learn rigorous academic

material. | have an unshakable belief in the potential of every child.

I am accountable for my students’ learning despite external factors out of my control.

Success is measured by our short-term results and ultimately by the lives our kids choose to lead.

With unwavering diligence every problem that exists in a school can and should be solved.

Teaching is not finite. It requires continuous learning, reflection, and problem-solving, and requires

that | constantly increase my repertoire, matching what is best for my students with the

circumstances.

F.  The whole school significantly affects student learning, so | will continuously seek to improve the
school by building strong relationships with colleagues and families.

= B

CHARACTER An excellent KIPP teacher...

A. Demonstrates grit through challenges to ensure that all of her students learn and grow. She never
gives up on students, and supports students in responding to life’s challenges.

B. Approaches all aspects of life and teaching with zest, energetically giving his all.

C. Demonstrates love for students by building respectful, caring, professional relationships with them,
keeping commitments, and making decisions with students’ best interests in mind.

D. Uses her understanding of her own motives and emotions and those of others (social intelligence)
to build strong relationships, create a welcoming, engaging learning environment, and to ensure
that students learn.

E. Demonstrates self-control that supports a stable mood and follows through on all commitments.

F. Takes time to thank the students for hard work and results, the families for supporting their kids,
and colleagues for great teamwork, showing gratitude every day.

G. Expresses hope about his students’ future thanks to their hard work, and expresses hope for the
constant improvement of his own practice, the school, and the broader movement.

H. Brings humor to her relationships with students and colleagues and to her teaching to engage
students and make learning fun.

I.  Lives and models the school’s values and norms.

KIPP FRAMEWORK FOR
EXCELLENT TEACHING
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SELF AND OTHERS

Self and Others: Excellent teaching requires understanding of oneself, one’s connection to others, and a
growth mindset that allows the teacher to take ownership for the success of all KIPPsters.

1.1
SELF-AWARENESS
AND SELF-
ADJUSTMENT

1.2
CONTINUOUS
LEARNING

1.3
BUILDING
RELATIONSHIPS

1.4
CULTURAL
COMPETENCE

15
COMMUNICATION

1.6

CRITICAL THINKING
AND PROBLEM-
SOLVING

KIPP FRAMEWORK FOR
EXCELLENT TEACHING

An excellent teacher...

2wz

>

=

Demonstrates a growth mindset about self.

Monitors and maintains emotional composure even in difficult situations.

Seeks to understand how his tone, actions, and comments are perceived, and adjusts as needed.
Manages time and takes care of self so she can take care of students.

Takes responsibility for results, mistakes, and behavior.

Seeks feedback, proactively uses data, and immediately adapts practice to improve as a teacher and
person.

Researches, observes others, experiments, shares, and collaborates on new practices.

Sets and relentlessly makes progress toward goals for professional improvement.

Analyzes how her teaching impacts the PrekK-16 continuum and makes appropriate changes

Makes students, families, and colleagues feel known, loved, and valued in and out of the classroom.
Keeps commitments made to: students, families, and colleagues.
Engages in genuine conversations with colleagues and families to achieve common goals.

Considers cultural connections and differences between himself, students, families, and colleagues
when making decisions.

Labels personal biases and seeks to overcome those biases.

Gains understanding of and respect for student culture, social context, and community in order to
build relationships and drive learning.

Adjusts communication in order to improve connection with students, parents, and colleagues.

Actively listens to others, with effective eye contact and non-verbals, and confirms understanding.
Communicates with genuine warmth and maintains rigorous expectations for behavior and results.
Responds to students and adults with positive tone, clarity, and enthusiasm. Does not use negative
language such as sarcasm, or engage in gossip.

Writes clearly and concisely, with appropriate grammar, vocabulary, and tone.

Communicates feedback, concerns, and praise directly to students, colleagues, and families, matching
the means to the purpose.

Seeks to understand and gain context.

Describes instead of interprets behavior when giving feedback.

Notices what is happening in the classroom and in students’ work and uses the data gathered to
match the teacher to the student and situation.

Anticipates and identifies problems with students, colleagues, or families in a timely manner and
generates multiple approaches that either prevent or solve the problem.

Breaks down complex content and thinking processes into accessible parts for students.

Breaks down complex student data to help drive student achievement and growth.
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CLASSROOM CULTURE

Classroom Culture: In an excellent classroom culture the teacher focuses on countless tangible and

intangible details in the space to create an environment where students are joyfully engaged,
meaningfully on-task, and feel ownership for their individual and collective successes in college and in

life.

2.1
EXPECTATIONS

2.2
ENGAGEMENT

2.3
ROUTINES AND
SYSTEMS

KIPP FRAMEWORK FOR
EXCELLENT TEACHING

Excellent teaching means that the teacher...

A.

Communicates four key messages to all students all of the time: 1) This is important; 2) You can
do it with hard work; 3) | will not give up on you; and 4) We will help each other.

Actively develops a growth mindset in students: take risks, admit confusion, make and learn
from mistakes,.

Clearly and repeatedly uses criteria for success to communicate what he wants students to
accomplish and how he expects them to behave.

Upholds challenging but realistic expectations for performance and behavior by providing
prompt, specific affirmations and adjusting feedback to students.

Constantly pushes student work toward college readiness.

Utilizes engagement for the purposes of mastery and meaning.

Ensures that students are engaged with the task, the teacher, each other, and independently.
Seeks external indicators that the brain is on task at hand (i.e., nodding, tracking, note-taking,
independent work.)

Constantly checks student engagement and appropriately adjusts the format and execution of
the class to increase engagement.

Hooks students into the lesson in multiple ways, intellectually and emotionally.

Models, teaches, and practices efficient behavioral and academic systems until they are
mastered by students with minimal prompting and re-direction in order to increase learning
time.

Quickly addresses challenges with routines or systems through a variety of appropriate
strategies.

Organizes the physical space, seating arrangements, materials, and displays to meet the needs
of instruction, maximize the flow of activities and students’ learning, and reflect KIPP’s college
preparatory focus.

Anticipates challenges that students with special needs may have with some routines and
systems, strategizes to minimize problems, and proactively prepares those students for success.
Provides students with opportunities to influence and take responsibility for classroom routines,
rewards, and consequences.

Builds students buy-in to an effective system of incentives linked to intrinsic rewards.
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CLASSROOM CULTURE

2.4
MANAGEMENT
AND DISCIPLINE

2.5
joy!

KIPP FRAMEWORK FOR
EXCELLENT TEACHING

Excellent teaching means that the teacher...

®

Recognizes and addresses the root causes of student disruption or inattention.

Reacts with speed and decisiveness when behavior is disruptive or does not meet expectations.
Promptly notes the behavior to the student and delivers the consequence.

Ensures consequences are logically connected to the behavior, fit the infraction, and that there
are a range of consequences for any rule.

Uses a calm but firm and convincing tone when addressing inappropriate behavior.
Acknowledges expectations met and thanks students for exceeding expectations with positive
consequences.

Uses confident, assertive body language to maintain respect and attention from students in and
out of the classroom.

Exudes a love of teaching and learning through facial expressions, tone, and actions.

Smiles and laughs regularly, and brings humor and zest to the work of teaching and learning.
Celebrates individual and group efforts and successes when students exceed academic,
behavioral, and character expectations.
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KIPP FRAMEWORK FOR
EXCELLENT TEACHING

Excellent teaching means that the teacher...

A. Establishes measurable, challenging, and realistic goals that drive planning and assessment and
cultivate the classroom and school community.

B. Uses student achievement data to establish long-term goals and regularly track progress, and has

students track their own progress toward the big goals.

Breaks big goals into manageable chunks.

. Invests in the students, their families, and their communities in an effort required to achieve the goals.

E. Communicates regularly with students and their families about their individual progress toward big
goals.

F. Connects big goals to student experiences or future opportunities.

oo

A. Unpacks all state and college preparatory standards to be mastered, then backwards plans, sequencing
them into manageable units of learning.

B. Designs and assesses goals, enduring understandings and essential questions, and objectives for each
unit.

C. Creates and sequences objectives required to master the goals of the unit.

D. Develops or adopts assessments that indicate level of mastery of objectives for each student as the
unit progresses, and at the end of each unit of study.

A. Plans a daily objective that is achievable, rigorous, and measurable.

B. Chooses materials/explanatory devices, and demonstrates pacing, sub-grouping, before differentiation
to meet objectives and needs of students.

C. Develops hooks (at different points in the lesson) that engage students in the lesson.

D. Designs opportunities for students to connect the lesson to prior knowledge.

E. Sets up multiple ways to assess student understanding and mastery.

F. Writes an aligned, interactive agenda that provides opportunities for introduction of new material,

guided practice, and independent practice.
G. Plans dual-purpose lessons when possible, addressing content and character objectives in one

lesson.

A.  Ensures that students “sweat” every day with an aim that is at the highest logical level for students,
differentiated for all student groups.

B. Insists on all-the-way correct answers from students; does not accept partial answers.

C. Has a clear idea of what mastery or excellence looks like, differentiated for all student groups, and
communicates the expectations for mastery clearly to all students.

D. Provides each student with structured, deliberate, and rigorous timely feedback on academic progress.

E. Uses questions to push students to apply knowledge in skills in ways up and down Bloom’s Taxonomy.
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KIPP FRAMEWORK FOR
EXCELLENT TEACHING

Excellent teaching means that the teacher...

A.

O

mo N w

Posts and communicates clear objectives and an engaging agenda for the lesson so kids know
what is to be learned, how it is to be learned, and why it is to be learned.

Delivers content in a well-organized, clear, accessible manner.

Pre-assesses knowledge and activates current knowledge.

Executes lessons that include a hook as well as modeled, guided, and independent practice, and a
closing that ties them together to ensure students achieve the objectives.

Ensures that sustained, structured, and rigorous Independent practice builds upon the guided
practice.

Provides opportunities for clear, organized student note-taking after the primary level.

Circulates and responds to student work in real-time, working as needed with individual students
and small groups during independent practice to differentiate teaching and ensure student
mastery.

Ensures that nearly all students can complete independent work independently.

Uses a variety of fun methods to review and practice skills already mastered.

Lowers the ratio of student-teacher: student talk by fostering student dialogue and and evaluating
one another’s ideas.

Develops cooperative learning and partner structures that allow for students to dialogue, debate,
and create without the teacher’s presence.

Employs economy of language and action to maximize the amount of time students think and
work.

Uses a variety of wait times to increase student talk and thinking.

Moves students briskly from each part of the agenda to the next, with smooth transitions and a
sense of urgency and purpose, maximizing each moment of instructional time.

Sets and communicates clear guidelines for how long activities will take, and uses timers or
countdowns to keep up pace.

Adjusts lesson timing as appropriate to meet needs of all students.

Plans for periods of active and passive engagement.

Checks for understanding using a variety of individual and whole group methods.

Asks a variety of types of questions, moving students across the levels of Bloom’s Taxonomy
critical thinking.

Makes students explain, defend, and revise their answers, even when they are correct.

Checks for understanding and mastery of the objective by all students throughout each lesson,
using the data to correct misconceptions immediately, and to inform what she will do next to help
them learn.

Decisively responds to gaps in understanding, knowing whether to re-teach the entire class or to
target a smaller group of students within the class.

Creates or obtains a standards-aligned diagnostic, as well as formative and summative
assessments to determine where students are in relation to the big goals.

Plans regular and unit assessments that are appropriately spiraled, scaffolded, and differentiated.
Assesses all students against learning objectives each day to inform teaching daily.
Communicates performance and progress to families.

Tracks and analyzes assessment data regularly to drive short and long-term planning, re-teaching,
and differentiation.
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KNOWLEDGE

AIniasD - i Jo ) - LR T i n et BRI R L

Knowledge: Teaching is an art and science. As the artists and scientists, we are responsible for
building our understanding of child development, pedagogy, and content. We are responsible for
knowing what we are teaching, how it fits in a PreK-16 continuum, and who we are teaching it to.

4.1 Excellent teaching means that the teacher...
CHILD
DEVELOPMENT A. Uses knowledge of children’s cognitive development, cognition, and behavior to plan, motivate,

engage, discipline, and teach.

B. Uses knowledge to support emotional needs of students and develop their ability to self-regulate.

C. Uses knowledge of the appropriate level of skills, knowledge, and language acquisition for
students in the age range to develop effective plans.

D. Uses knowledge of how students in a particular age range form relationships, communicate, and
interact with others to cultivate classroom community.

E. Uses his knowledge of child development to strike a balance in how he exercises authority and
how he interacts with and engages students.

4.2 A. Develops deep, up-to-date knowledge of the essential concepts in the discipline and how they
CONTENT relate to one another.
KNOWLEDGE B. Builds strong knowledge of state and national standards for the discipline.

C. Breaks the content down into accessible skills, procedures, and ideas for students while
maintaining content at a college preparatory level.

D. Matches the content to an excellent strategy for presentation.

E. Has knowledge of what comes before and after in the curriculum (i.e., the third grade teacher
knows what a second and fourth grade curriculum looks like, the Algebra Il teacher is familiar
with Algebra | and Pre-calculus.)

Models thoughtful and joyful reading, writing, and speaking.

Deliberately and frequently expands students’ vocabulary.

Uses knowledge of students’ reading levels and interests to plan lessons regardless of the subject.
Models pre-reading, reading, and post-reading strategies.

Models, teaches, and reinforces fluent and expressive reading aloud.

Provides students with varied opportunities to express their thinking in writing and to engage the
writing process.

G. Upholds high standards for the 6+1 Traits of writing in all circumstances.

4.3 LITERACY FOR
EVERYONE

| BEom e

KIPP FRAMEWORK FOR
EXCELLENT TEACHING
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4.4

DIFFERENTIATION

KIPP FRAMEWORK FOR
EXCELLENT TEACHING

Excellent teaching means that the teacher...

A

Challenges students at their level and brings them to the level required to meet learning
objectives and big goals for the class.

Varies teaching strategies, styles and activities (despite personal style preferences) to help all
students master objectives.

Knows the learning styles, academic strengths and weaknesses of each individual student, and
does not get hung up on categories or labels.

Plans questions, activities, and assignments that adequately spiral and differentiate by level of
difficulty, depth, and learning style to ensure that all students master the objectives.

Uses independent practice and peer groupings to allow time in class to work with specific groups
of students and individuals.

Pre-teaches skills to the lowest skilled students regularly and re-teaches learning objectives to
specific students as needed.

Uses peer tutors and groups, other teachers, parents, and outside tutors for out-of-class
remediation and enrichment.

Provides lowest skilled students the time and/or other resources needed in and out of class to be
successful.

Challenges the higher skilled students using independent practice and time in and out of class to
tackle more challenging material.

Differentiates behavioral consequences.
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Instructions

Teacher:

1. Please complete the self-assessment portion of this review template, using the following as
reference:

a. Your 2011-12 performance goals

b. The KIPP Framework for Teaching Excellence

2. Please send this completed document to your manager by the designated due date.

Manager:

1. Please reflect on your evaluation of this teacher’s performance before receiving his/her self-
assessment.

2. Use the self-assessment as one input into your evaluation of his/her performance and behavior. Your
review of his/her results, of student work, and your ongoing observations provide an essential
foundation for your review.

3. Complete your written evaluation for the teacher in advance of your review discussion. Please send
him/her your written evaluation at least 24 hours before the meeting.

4. Conduct the review discussion, taking the time to recognize successful performance, to discuss any
performance gaps, and to provide feedback on strengths and areas of growth. This discussion
should feed future, ongoing conversations about performance and development.

For more detailed suggestions about conducting a performance review, please refer to the Guide to
Teacher Performance Reviews.

Rating Scale
When rating performance goals, competencies, and overall performance, please use the following
scale:
Far Below Below Met Exceeded Far Exceeded | Not Enough
Expectations Expectations Expectations Expectations | Expectations | Information
1 2 3 4 5 NEI

*When rating performance goals, a 3 indicated that you have met the goal or are on track, at mid-year, to
meet the goal. A 4 indicates that you have slightly exceeded the goal or are on track to slightly exceed it at
mid-year. A 5 indicates that you have far exceeded the goal or are on track to do so. A 2 indicates that you
have fallen just short of the goal or are on track to do so at mid-year. And a 1 indicates that you have fallen
far short of the goal or are on track to fall far short of it at mid-year. Use NEI when you do not have
observation data to support a rating.
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The KIPP Framework for Excellent Teaching

SELF AND
IMPACT ON
OTHERS
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Ratings — Performance Goals

Performance Goals Mid Year Year-End

Please copy and paste your performance goals and rate each. Please Rating Rating

add or delete rows as needed (1-5) (1-5)
Self Self
Manager Manager
Self Self
Manager Manager
Self Self
Manager Manager
Self Self
Manager Manager

Ratings — Teaching Competencies
Beliefs and Character

Beliefs

| believe that...

A. With effort and appropriate strategies, all children have what it takes to learn rigorous academic material. | have
an unshakable belief in the potential of every child.

B. | am accountable for my students’ learning despite external factors out of my control.

C. Success is measured by our short-term results and ultimately by the lives our kids choose to lead.

D. With unwavering diligence every problem that exists in a school can and should be solved.

E. Teaching is not finite. It requires continuous learning, reflection, and problem-solving, and requires that |
constantly increase my repertoire, matching what is best for my students with the circumstances.

F. The whole school significantly affects student learning, so | will continuously seek to improve the school by
building strong relationships with colleagues and families.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year
Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year
Character

An excellent KIPP teacher...

A. Demonstrates grit through challenges to ensure that all of her students learn and grow. She never gives up on
students, and supports students in responding to life’s challenges.

B. Approaches all aspects of life and teaching with zest, energetically giving his all.

C. Demonstrates love for students by building respectful, caring, professional relationships with them, keeping
commitments, and making decisions with students’ best interests in mind.

D. Uses her understanding of her own motives and emotions and those of others (social intelligence) to build strong
relationships, create a welcoming, engaging learning environment, and to ensure that students learn.

E. Demonstrates self-control that supports a stable mood and follows through on all commitments.

F. Takes time to thank the students for hard work and results, the families for supporting their kids and colleagues
for great teamwork, showing gratitude every day.

G. Expresses hope about his students’ future thanks to their hard work, and expresses hope for the

constant improvement of his own practice, the school, and the broader movement.

H. Brings humor to her relationships with students and colleagues and to her teaching to engage students and
make learning fun.

I. Lives and models the school’s values and norms.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year
Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year
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' Self and Impact on Others

Self-awareness and self-adjustment

An excellent KIPP teacher...

A. Demonstrates a growth mindset about self.

B. Monitors and maintains emotional composure even in difficult situations.

C. Seeks to understand how his tone, actions, and comments are perceived, and adjusts as needed.
D. Manages time and takes care of self so she can take care of students.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year

Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

Continuous Learning

A. Takes responsibility for results, mistakes, and behavior.

B. Seeks feedback, proactively uses data, and immediately adapts practice to improve as a teacher and
person.

C. Researches, observes others, experiments, shares, and collaborates on new practices.

D. Sets and relentlessly makes progress toward goals for professional improvement.

E. Analyzes how her teaching impacts the PreK-16 continuum and makes appropriate changes

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year

Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

Building Relationships

A. Makes students, families, and colleagues feel known, loved, and valued in and out of the classroom.
B. Keeps commitments made to: students, families, and colleagues.
C. Engages in genuine conversations with colleagues and families to achieve common goals.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year

Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

Cultural Competence

A. Considers cultural connections and differences between himself, students, families, and colleagues
when making decisions.

B. Labels personal biases and seeks to overcome those biases.

C. Gains understanding of and respect for student culture, social context, and community in order to
build relationships and drive learning.

D. Adjusts communication in order to improve connection with students, parents, and colleagues.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year

Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

Communication

A. Actively listens to others, with effective eye contact and non-verbals, and confirms understanding.

B. Communicates with genuine warmth and maintains rigorous expectations for behavior and results.

C. Responds to students and adults with positive tone, clarity, and enthusiasm. Does not use negative
language such as sarcasm, or engage in gossip.

D. Writes clearly and concisely, with appropriate grammar, vocabulary, and tone.

E. Communicates feedback, concerns, and praise directly to students, colleagues, and families, matching
the means to the purpose.

F. Seeks to understand and gain context.

G. Describes instead of interprets behavior when giving feedback.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year

Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year
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Communication

A. Actively listens to others, with effective eye contact and non-verbals, and confirms understanding.

B. Communicates with genuine warmth and maintains rigorous expectations for behavior and results.

C. Responds to students and adults with positive tone, clarity, and enthusiasm. Does not use negative
language such as sarcasm, or engage in gossip.

D. Writes clearly and concisely, with appropriate grammar, vocabulary, and tone.

E. Communicates feedback, concerns, and praise directly to students, colleagues, and families, matching
the means to the purpose.

F. Seeks to understand and gain context.

G. Describes instead of interprets behavior when giving feedback.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year
Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

Critical Thinking and Problem-solving

A. Notices what is happening in the classroom and in students’ work and uses the data gathered to
match the teacher to the student and situation.

B. Anticipates and identifies problems with students, colleagues, or families in a timely manner and
generates multiple approaches that either prevent or solve the problem.

C. Breaks down complex content and thinking processes into accessible parts for students.

D. Breaks down complex student data to help drive student achievement and growth.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year

Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

Excellent teaching means that the teacher:

A. Communicates four key messages to all students all of the time: 1) This is important; 2) You can
do it with hard work; 3) | will not give up on you; and 4) We will help each other.

B. Actively develops a growth mindset in students: take risks, admit confusion, make and learn
from mistakes,.

C. Clearly and repeatedly uses criteria for success to communicate what he wants students to
accomplish and how he expects them to behave.

D. Upholds challenging but realistic expectations for performance and behavior by providing
prompt, specific affirmations and adjusting feedback to students.

E. Constantly pushes student work toward college readiness.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year
Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

A. Utilizes engagement for the purposes of mastery and meaning.

B. Ensures that students are engaged with the task, the teacher, each other, and independently.
C. Seeks external indicators that the brain is on task at hand (i.e., nodding, tracking, note-taking,
independent work.)

D. Constantly checks student engagement and appropriately adjusts the format and execution of

the class to increase engagement.
E. Hooks students into the lesson in multiple ways, intellectually and emotionally.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year
Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year
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A. Models, teaches, and practices efficient behavioral and academic systems until they are mastered by
students with minimal prompting and re-direction in order to increase learning time.

B. Quickly addresses challenges with routines or systems through a variety of appropriate strategies.

C. Organizes the physical space, seating arrangements, materials, and displays to meet the needs of
instruction, maximize the flow of activities and students’ learning, and reflect KIPP's college preparatory focus.
D. Anticipates challenges that students with special needs may have with some routines and systems,
strategizes to minimize problems, and proactively prepares those students for success.

E. Provides students with opportunities to influence and take responsibility for classroom routines, rewards,
and consequences.

F. Builds students buy-in to an effective system of incentives linked to intrinsic rewards.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year
Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

A. Recognizes and addresses the root causes of student disruption or inattention.

B. Reacts with speed and decisiveness when behavior is disruptive or does not meet expectations.
Promptly notes the behavior to the student and delivers the consequence.

C. Ensures consequences are logically connected to the behavior, fit the infraction, and that there
are a range of consequences for any rule.

D. Uses a calm but firm and convincing tone when addressing inappropriate behavior.

E. Acknowledges expectations met and thanks students for exceeding expectations with positive
consequences.

F. Uses confident, assertive body language to maintain respect and attention from students in and
out of the classroom.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year
Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

A. Exudes a love of teaching and learning through facial expressions, tone, and actions.

B. Smiles and laughs regularly, and brings humor and zest to the work of teaching and learning.
C. Celebrates individual and group efforts and successes when students exceed academic,
behavioral, and character expectations.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year
Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

| The Teaching Cycle

Big Goals
Excellent teaching means that the teacher...
A. Establishes measurable, challenging, and realistic goals that drive planning and assessment and

cultivate the classroom and school community.

B. Uses student achievement data to establish long-term goals and regularly track progress, and has
students track their own progress toward the big goals.

C. Breaks big goals into manageable chunks.

D. Invests in the students, their families, and their communities in an effort required to achieve the goals.

E. Communicates regularly with students and their families about their individual progress toward big goals.
F. Connects big goals to student experiences or future opportunities.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year
Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year
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Long-term and Unit Planning

A. Unpacks all state and college preparatory standards to be mastered, then backwards plans, sequencing
them into manageable units of learning.

B. Designs and assesses goals, enduring understandings and essential questions, and objectives for each unit.
C. Creates and sequences objectives required to master the goals of the unit.

D. Develops or adopts assessments that indicate level of mastery of objectives for each student as the

unit progresses, and at the end of each unit of study.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year

Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

Lesson Plannning

Excellent teaching means that the teacher...

A. Plans a daily objective that is achievable, rigorous, and measurable.

B. Chooses materials/explanatory devices, and demonstrates pacing, sub-grouping, before differentiation
to meet objectives and needs of students.

C. Develops hooks (at different points in the lesson) that engage students in the lesson.

D. Designs opportunities for students to connect the lesson to prior knowledge.

E. Sets up multiple ways to assess student understanding and mastery.

F. Writes an aligned, interactive agenda that provides opportunities for introduction of new material,
guided practice, and independent practice.

G. Plans dual-purpose

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year
Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year
Rigor

A. Ensures that students “sweat” every day with an aim that is at the highest logical level for students,
differentiated for all student groups.

B. Insists on all-the-way correct answers from students; does not accept partial answers.

C. Has a clear idea of what mastery or excellence looks like, differentiated for all student groups, and
communicates the expectations for mastery clearly to all students.

D. Provides each student with structured, deliberate, and rigorous timely feedback on academic progress.
E. Uses questions to push students to apply knowledge in skills in ways up and down Bloom’s Taxonomy.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year

Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

Lesson Execution

Excellent teaching means that the teacher...

A. Posts and communicates clear objectives and an engaging agenda for the lesson so kids know what is to be
learned, how it is to be learned, and why it is to be learned.

B. Delivers content in a well-organized, clear, accessible manner.

C. Pre-assesses knowledge and activates current knowledge.

D. Executes lessons that include a hook as well as modeled, guided, and independent practice, and a
closing that ties them together to ensure students achieve the objectives.

E. Ensures that sustained, structured, and rigorous Independent practice builds upon the guided practice.
F. Provides opportunities for clear, organized student note-taking after the primary level.

G. Circulates and responds to student work in real-time, working as needed with individual students

and small groups during independent practice to differentiate teaching and ensure student mastery.

H. Ensures that nearly all students can complete independent work independently.

I. Uses a variety of fun methods to review and practice skills already mastered.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year

Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year
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Ratio

A. Lowers the ratio of student-teacher: student talk by fostering student dialogue and evaluating one another’s

ideas.
B. Develops cooperative learning and partner structures that allow for students to dialogue, debate, and create

without the teacher’s presence.
C. Employs economy of language and action to maximize the amount of time students think and work.
D. Uses a variety of wait times to increase student talk and thinking.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year

Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

Pacing and Timing

A. Moves students briskly from each part of the agenda to the next, with smooth transitions and a sense of
urgency and purpose, maximizing each moment of instructional time.

B. Sets and communicates clear guidelines for how long activities will take, and uses timers or countdowns to
keep up pace.

C. Adjusts lesson timing as appropriate to meet needs of all students.

D. Plans for periods of active and passive engagement.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year

Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

Assessment and Analysis

A. Creates or obtains a standards-aligned diagnostic, as well as formative and summative assessments to
determine where students are in relation to the big goals.

B. Plans regular and unit assessments that are appropriately spiraled, scaffolded, and differentiated.

C. Assesses all students against learning objectives each day to inform teaching daily.

D. Communicates performance and progress to families.

E. Tracks and analyzes assessment data regularly to drive short and long-term planning, re-teaching and
differentiation.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year

Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

Excellent teaching means that the teacher...

A. Uses knowledge of children’s cognitive development, cognition, and behavior to plan, motivate,
engage, discipline, and teach.

B. Uses knowledge to support emotional needs of students and develop their ability to self-regulate.
C. Uses knowledge of the appropriate level of skills, knowledge, and language acquisition for
students in the age range to develop effective plans.

D. Uses knowledge of how students in a particular age range form relationships, communicate, and
interact with others to cultivate classroom community.

E. Uses his knowledge of child development to strike a balance in how he exercises authority and
how he interacts with and engages students.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year

Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year
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A. Develops deep, up-to-date knowledge of the essential concepts in the discipline and how they relate to one
another.

B. Builds strong knowledge of state and national standards for the discipline.

C. Breaks the content down into accessible skills, procedures, and ideas for students while maintaining content at
a college preparatory level.

D. Matches the content to an excellent strategy for presentation.

E. Has knowledge of what comes before and after in the curriculum (i.e., the third grade teacher knows what a
second and fourth grade curriculum looks like, the Algebra Il teacher is familiar with Algebra | and Pre-calculus.)

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year
Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

A. Models thoughtful and joyful reading, writing, and speaking.

B. Deliberately and frequently expands students’ vocabulary.

C. Uses knowledge of students’ reading levels and interests to plan lessons regardless of the subject.

D. Models pre-reading, reading, and post-reading strategies.

E. Models, teaches, and reinforces fluent and expressive reading aloud.

F. Provides students with varied opportunities to express their thinking in writing and to engage the writing
process.

G. Upholds high standards for the 6+1 Traits of writing in all circumstances.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year
Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year

Excellent teaching means that the teacher...
A. Challenges students at their level and brings them to the level required to meet learning objectives and big

goals for the class.
B. Varies teaching strategies, styles and activities (despite personal style preferences) to help all students master

objectives.
C. Knows the learning styles, academic strengths and weaknesses of each individual student, and does not get

hung up on categories or labels.

D. Plans questions, activities, and assignments that adequately spiral and differentiate by level of difficulty, depth,
and learning style to ensure that all students master the objectives.

E. Uses independent practice and peer groupings to allow time in class to work with specific groups of students

and individuals.
F. Pre-teaches skills to the lowest skilled students regularly and re-teaches learning objectives to specific students

as needed.
G. Uses peer tutors and groups, other teachers, parents, and outside tutors for out-of-class remediation and

enrichment.
H. Provides lowest skilled students the time and/or other resources needed in and out of class to be successful.

I. Challenges the higher skilled students using independent practice and time in and out of class to tackle more
challenging material.
J. Differentiates behavioral consequences.

Self-rating mid-year Self rating end-of-year
Manager rating mid-year Manager rating end-of-year
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Performance and Development Narrative

Mid-Year Self Comments

What goals would you characterize as “on track” at this point in the year, and why? What 1-2 beliefs and 1-2
character strengths do you bring to life daily to contribute to your successes? Which competencies or behaviors
have contributed most to your success, and how have you leveraged them? Please be specific.

Which goals would you characterize as “not on track” at this point in the year, and why? What 1-2 beliefs and 1-2
character strengths do you struggle to bring to life, and hold you back from meeting your goals? Which
competencies and behaviors do you need to focus on to better accomplish your goals? Please be specific.

Mid-Year Manager Comments

What goals would you characterize as “on track” for the teacher at this point in the year, and why?
Which beliefs, character strengths, competencies and behaviors have contributed most to that success, and how

has he/she leveraged them? Please be specific.

Which goals would you characterize as “not on track” for the teacher at this point in the year, and why?
Which beliefs, character strengths, competencies and behaviors does he/she need to continue to focus on to

better accomplish goals? Please be specific.

Agreed-upon Action Steps:

11
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Year-End Self Comments

What goals have you reached or exceeded this year, and why? Which beliefs, character strengths, competencies
and behaviors have contributed most to that success, and how have you lived them day-to-day? Please be specific.

Which goals did not get achieved this year and why? Which beliefs, character strengths, competencies and
behaviors do you need to continue to focus on in the upcoming year to better achieve goals? Please be specific.

Year-End Manager Comments

What goals did the teacher reach or exceed this year, and why? Which beliefs, character strengths, competencies,
and behaviors have contributed most to that success, and how has he/she lived them? Please be specific.

Which goals did not get achieved this year and why? Which beliefs, character strengths, competencies, and
behaviors does he/she need to continue to focus on in the upcoming year to better achieve goals? Please be
specific.

Agreed-upon Action Steps:

12
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Overall Rating Please rate overall performance, considering progress against goals and behaviors
relative to beliefs, character strengths, and competencies. Performance on goals is typically weighted
far more heavily overall.

Mid-Year Rating Year-End Rating
(1-5) (1-5)
Manager Manager

Signatures

Teacher
| participated in discussion of this review with my manager on the date indicated. My signature

indicates knowledge and understanding of the contents of this document and does not necessarily

imply agreement or disagreement.

Signature (mid-year): Signature (year-end):
Date: Date:
Manager
I participated in discussion of this review with the Teacher above on the date indicated.
Signature (mid-year): Signature (year-end):
Date: Date:
Next Steps

e Based on this review discussion, please determine what next steps you can take to ensure

success in your role.
e Please review your Individual Development Plan (IDP) and consider how these actions can be

incorporated/ how you may want to re-set development goals.
e Checkin regularly about the progress you’re making against your performance and
development goals, communicating any support you may need.
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